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SAFE HARBOUR 
STATEMENT 
 

 
In this Annual Report we have disclosed forward-looking information [within the 

meaning of various laws] to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take 

informed investment decisions. This report and other statements–written and oral-that 

we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated 

results based on the Management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever 

possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, 

‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in 

connection with any discussion of future performance. 

 
We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realized, although 

we believe we have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to 

risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks 

or uncertainties materialize or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual 

results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers 

should bear this in mind. 

 
We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether 

as a result of new information, future events or otherwise Corporate Information. 
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NOTICE OF 14
TH 

ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the fourteen (14th) annual general meeting of the 
members of Caspian corporate services limited will be held on Saturday, 20th 
September, 2025 at 03:00 p.m. Through video conferencing/ other audio-visual 
means, to transact the following business: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

ITEM NO. 1 – ADOPTION OF AUDITED STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 
ITEM NO. 2 – TO APPROVE & DECLARE THE FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 

To declare the final dividend of Rs. 0.05/- per equity share having face value of Rs. 1/- each (i.e. 5% of 
face value) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 
ITEM NO. 3 – RE-APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR 

To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. Sampath Rao Nemmani (DIN: 07999868), who retires by 
rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, seeks re- 
appointment. 

 
“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sampath 
Rao Nemmani (DIN: 07999868), who retires by rotation, at this Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as the Director of the 
company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the company be 
and are hereby authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
ITEM NO. 4 – REGULARISATION OF APPOINTMENT OF MR. NARESH REDDY VATTIPALLY (DIN: 
11169531) AS AN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY. 
 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification/(s) or re-enactment/(s) thereof for the time being in force), 

 
Mr. Naresh Reddy Vattipally (DIN: 11169531), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
Company with effect from 03rd July, 2025 by board of directors and who holds office only upto the date 
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Executive 
Director of the Company on the terms and conditions and remuneration as agreed and with liberty to the 
Board of Directors to alter and vary such terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or 
remuneration as it may deem fit; 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all 
acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution 
including filing of forms if any with MCA or intimation to any regulatory body.” 

 
ITEM NO. 5 – APPOINTMENT OF M/S. SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES, (ICSI FIRM REGISTRATION 
NO. S2019MH668100) COMPANY SECRETARIES AS SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision of Section 204 and 179(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed 
thereunder, Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (including any statutory modification(s), re-enactment thereof for time being in force) and 
circulars issued thereunder from time to time, and based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee and Board of Directors, M/s. Shalini Pandey & Associates, Company Secretaries (ICSI FIRM 
REGISTRATION NO. S2019MH668100), be and are hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditors for the 
Company, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years, i.e. from financial year 2025-26 to financial 
year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the 
Secretarial Auditors. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted committee of the Board, be and is hereby 
authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or expedient in 
connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 

 
 
ITEM NO. 6 – APPROVAL FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and 
other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and 
the Company's policy on Related Party transaction(s), in the ordinary course of business with Sumathi 
Agro Industries – Partnership Firm, a related party within the meaning of section 2(76) of the Act and 
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, upto a Maximum aggregate value of Rs. 5,00,00,000/- per 
year for the financial year 2026-27, provided that the said contracts/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so 
carried out shall be at arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the company. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such Related Party Transactions shall be conducted solely in the ordinary 
course of business and on an arm’s length basis, and on such specific terms and conditions, including 
pricing, payment terms, and duration, as are more fully detailed in the Explanatory Statement annexed 
to the Notice convening this Annual General Meeting, and as may be mutually agreed between Sumathi 
Agro Industries and the Company, subject always to the oversight and approval mechanisms of the 
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors; 

 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of 
the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the Company and 
to do all acts and take such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution; 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in this resolution be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all aspects; 
 

          By order of the Board of the Directors  

For, CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 

           (Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 
 
 

 

 

 

Place: Telangana         SD/- 

Date: 23/08/2025                                SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI  

Registered Office:       MANAGING DIRECTOR  

F - Block, 105, First Floor, Surya Towers,   DIN: 00966068 

Sardar Patel Road, Secunderabad,  

Hyderabad - 500003, Telangana. 
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NOTES 
 

1. An Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act and the 
other applicable provisions of the Act for the proposed Resolutions is annexed hereto. The approval of 
the Members of the Company is being sought through the remote e-voting facility only. 

 
2. Electronic copy of all documents referred to the accompanying Notice of the AGM will be available for 
inspection by the Shareholders in electronic mode on the website of the Company at 
www.caspianservices.in. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of CDSL (agency for providing 
the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 

 
3. Further, in continuation to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs General Circular No. 14 /2020 dated 
08.04.2020, General Circular No. 03/ 2022 dated 05.05.2022, General Circular No. 11/ 2022 dated 
28.12.2022 and 09/2024 dated 19th September, 2024 and after due examination, it has also been 
decided to allow companies to conduct their AGMs through Video Conference (VC) or Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM) or transact items through postal ballot in accordance with framework provided in the 
aforesaid Circulars up to 30th September, 2025. All other requirements provided in the said Circulars 
shall remain unchanged. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
('Act'), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations'), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is 
being conducted through VC/OAVM. 

 
4. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
5. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time 
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served 
basis. 

 
6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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NOTES 
 

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars 
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e- 
voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for 
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting 
votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will 
be provided by CDSL. 

 
8. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 3) Further, in continuation to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs General Circular 
No. 14 /2020 dated 08.04.2020, General Circular No. 03/ 2022 dated 05.05.2022, General Circular No. 
11/ 2022 dated 28.12.2022 and General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19th September, 2024 and after 
due examination, it has also been decided to allow companies to conduct their AGMs through Video 
Conference (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) or transact items through postal ballot in 
accordance with framework provided in the aforesaid Circulars up to 30th September, 2025. All other 
requirements provided in the said Circulars shall remain unchanged (collectively referred to as 'MCA 
Circulars'). 

 
9. In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) read with Clarification / Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards - 
1 and 2 dated April 15, 2020 issued by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be 
conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. 
 
10. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 14th September, 
2025 to 20th September, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting. 
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THE INTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING 
AGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders 
holding shares in Demat mode. 

 
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode 
and non-individual shareholders in Demat mode. 

1) The voting period begins on Wednesday, 17th September, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. and ends on Friday, 19th 
September, 2025 at 05:00 p.m. during this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) i.e. Saturday, 13th 
September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 
for voting thereafter. 

 
2) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue. 

 
3) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its 
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 
and passwords by the shareholders. 

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through 
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only 
facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e- 
voting process. 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders 
holding shares in demat mode. 

 
4) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 
eVoting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
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TYPE OF 
SHAREHOLDERS 

LOGIN METHOD 

 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested 
to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon 
& My Easi New (Token) Tab. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL 
Depository 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is 
in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, 
so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website 
directly. 

 
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 
is available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
& My Easi New (Token) Tab and then click on registration option. 

 
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system 
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 
& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 
Depository 

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 

 launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
 which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. 
 You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 
 successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
 services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
 and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name 
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name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re- 
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 
3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 
sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
4) For OTP based login you can click on 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.j 
sp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN 
No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received 
on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 
and 022 - 2499 7000 

 
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode 
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

 
5) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders 
other than individual holding in Demat form. 

 
 
1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 
2. Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 
3. Now enter your User ID 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will 
be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, 
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login through 
their Depository 
Participants (DP) 
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a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
 
4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 
earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 
6. If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
6) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

and voted on an 

 
7) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that 
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. 

8) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 
9) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Caspian Corporate Services Limited> on which you choose to vote. 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders 
holding shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income 
Tax Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well 
as physical shareholders) 

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend Bank Details 
OR Date of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth 
(in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in the 
company records in order to login. 

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field. 
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10) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
11) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
12) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
13) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
14) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 
page. 

 
15) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 
16) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available 
to scrutinizer for verification. 

 
17) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only. 

 
·Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 
·A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 
·After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 
·The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any 
wrong mapping. 

 
·It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 
for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
·Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board 
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
csicaldept@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e- 
voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE 
AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING 
ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

 
2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

 
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 

 
 
4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 
5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 
any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective 
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches. 

 
7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 15 days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The 
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in 
advance 15 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email 
id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by 
email. 

 
8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

 
9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 
so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if 
the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes 
cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 
available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE 
NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/ 
DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

 
2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) 

 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 
Depository. 

 
If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, 
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 180021 09911 

 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 180021 09911 

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN TERMS OF SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
The following statements set out all material facts relating to Special Businesses mentioned in the 
accompanying Notice 

ITEM NO. 04: REGULARIZATION OF APPOINTMENT OF MR. NARESH REDDY VATTIPALLY (DIN: 
11169531) AS AN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the Articles of 
Association of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Naresh Reddy 
Vattipally (DIN: 11169531) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 03/07/2025. 

 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Naresh Reddy Vattipally fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and 
Rules made thereunder for his appointment as Director of the Company. 

 
Further, the Board considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is 
desirable to continue to avail the services of Mr. Naresh Reddy Vattipally as a Director. 

 
Save and except for Mr. Naresh Reddy Vattipally and his relatives in relation to their shareholding in the 
Company, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is 
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ITEM NO. 05: APPOINTMENT OF M/S. SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES, (ICSI FIRM REGISTRATION 
NO. S2019MH668100) COMPANY SECRETARIES AS SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 24A of Listing Regulations, as amended vide SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 (Amendment), the appointment of 
Secretarial Auditors; 

 
1.) Is required to be approved by the shareholders of the company at the Annual General Meeting; 

 
2.) In case of a Secretarial Audit Firm – cannot be for more than two consecutive terms of 5 (Five) years 
each 

 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has approved the 
appointment of M/s. Shalini Pandya & Associates (“CSA”), Company Secretaries in Practice, FRN: 
S2019MH668100 and Peer review certificate number : 5756/2024, as the Secretarial Auditors of the 
company for a period of five consecutive financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30. The appointment is 
subject to shareholder’s approval of this AGM. While recommending CSA for appointment, the Audit 
committee and the Board, based on past audit experience of the audit firm particularly in auditing 
large companies, valuated various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a diverse and 
complex business environment, its existing experience in the various business segments, the clientele 
it serves, and its technical expertise. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of Listing Regulation as amended, the credentials and terms of 
appointment of CSA are as under: 
 
Profile: CSA stands as one of the premier firm of practicing Company Secretaries, boasting over decade 
of extensive experience of excellence in compliance and governance. The firm’s broad and 
comprehensive practices areas reflect its deep expertise across various domains, including corporate 
laws, capital market transactions, listing compliances, due diligence, and compliance & governance 
audits. This extensive knowledge enables CSA to be trusted partner for businesses navigating intricate 
legal and regulatory landscapes. Dedicated to excellence and a client-centric philosophy, CSA offers 
tailored solutions within these diverse practice areas, ensuring clients achieve their business goals 
efficiently and effectively. 
 
Terms of appointment: CSA is proposed to be appointed for a term of five (5) consecutive years, to 
conduct the Secretarial Audit of five consecutive financial years, from 2025-26 to 2029-30. 
 
The proposed fees payable to CSA is INR 75,000/- per annum. The said fees shall exclude GST, 
certification fees, applicable taxes, reimbursements and other outlays. The Audit Committee/Board is 
proposed to be authorized to revise the fee, from time to time. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
 
The Board recommends Ordinary Resolution set out at item No. 05 of the Notice for approval by the 
members. 
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In line with the best governance practices of Corporate Governance code, at Caspian Corporate Services 
Limited, the Secretarial Auditors were required to be rotated every 10 years even prior to the 
amendment to the Listing Regulations, Accordingly, in terms of provisions of section 204 of the Act, read 
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 

 
The Board at its meeting held 23rd August, 2025, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
has considered, approved and recommended to the Members of the Company, the appointment of M/s. 
Shalini Pandey & Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The 
proposed appointment is for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from financial year 2025-26 to financial 
year 2029-30 on payment of such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of 
Directors and the secretarial Auditors, from time to time. 

 
ITEM NO. 06: APPROVAL FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
Details of proposed RPTs between the Company and Sumathi Agro Industries including the 
information required to be disclosed in the Explanatory Statement pursuant to the SEBI Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 2021 read with various 
Circulars issued in this respect, are as follows: 

 

 

S. No. DECRIPATION DETAILS OF PROPOSED RPTS BETWEEN 
THE COMPANY & SUMATHI CORPORATE 
SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

01 Summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit Committee for 
approval of the proposed RPTs 

a. Name of the Related Party and its 
relationship with the Company or its 
subsidiary, including nature of its concern 
or interest (financial or otherwise). 

Sumathi Agro Industries, a firm, in which 
a director, manager or his relative is a 
partner; 
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b. Type, material terms, monetary value and 
particulars of the proposed RPTs 

Sale of Goods or Services. The aggregate 
value of the transactions shall not exceeding 
Rs. 5 Crores for a period commencing from 
the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion 
of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 
the calendar year 2025. 

c. Percentage of the Company's annual 
consolidated turnover, for the immediately 
preceding financial year, that is 
represented by the value of the proposed 
RPTs 

5.84% 

2. Justification for the proposed RPTs The management wants to expand the 
business 

3. Details of proposed RPTs relating to any loans; inter-corporate deposits, advanced or 
Investments made or given by the Company or its subsidiary. 

a. Details of the source of funds in 
connection with the proposed transaction 

Not Applicable, as the transaction doesn't 
relate to any loans, inter corporate deposits, 
advances or investment made or given by 
the listed entity or subsidiary b. Where any financial indebtedness is 

incurred to make or give loans, inter 
corporate deposits, advances or 
investments:- Nature of indebtedness,- 
Cost of funds and- Tenure 

c. Applicable terms, including covenants, 
tenure, interest rate and repayment 
schedule, whether secured or unsecured; 
if secured, the nature of security 

d. The purpose for which the funds will be 
utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such 
funds pursuant to the RPT 

4. Arm's length pricing and a statement that 
the valuation or other external report, if 
relied upon by the listed entity in relation 
to the proposed transaction will be made 
available through the registered email 
address of the shareholders; 

Any transaction with Related Party is 
deemed to be at arm length basis. However, 
the said transaction does not require any 
valuation or other external report. 

5. Name of the Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel ('KMP') who is related, if any, 
and the nature of their relationship. 

Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi, Managing 
Director of the Company is the partner of 
Sumathi Agro Industries, firm- related party 
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6. Any other information that may be 
relevant 

N.A. 

7. Terms and Conditions of Similar 
Transactions been entered with the 
unrelated parties. 

There is no such transaction entered by the 
company with unrelated parties which are 
not at on arm length basis. 

 
None of the other Directors, KMPs and/ or their respective are in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution mentioned at the Notice except Mr. SUKUMAR REDDY 
GARLAPATI. 

 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution 
set forth at ITEM No. 06 of the Notice for approval by the Members. 

 
The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party 
shall vote to approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at item No. 6 of the Notice, whether the entity is a 
Related Party to the particular transaction or not. 
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EXHIBIT TO THE NOTICE 

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment at the Annual 
General Meeting 

(Under Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements, 2015) 

 

 

NAME OF DIRECTOR MR. SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI MR. NARESH REDDY VATTIPALLY 

DIN 07999868 11169531 

Date of Birth 19th February, 1975 25/05/1983 

Brief resume & 
nature of expertise 
in specific functional 
areas 

Mr. Sampath Rao Nemmani has 
a Bachelor's Degree in 
Electronics from KU, 
Telangana, India. 

Mr. Naresh Reddy Vattipally, aged 42 
years, is post graduate in MSC 
Computer and MBA Management 
and having more than 06 years 

  business experience in the field of 
 He has more than seven (7) integrated services including 
 years of experience in Facility house-keeping, Security, Property 
 Management Services. He is Management, and various business 
 focused on continuous process support services and human resource 
 improvement of Delivery outsourcing (HRO) services. 
 Methodology & Customer  

 Satisfaction.   
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No. of Equity Shares 
held in the Company 

10,76,181 0 

Names of listed 
entities (Including 
this listed entity) in 
which the person 
holds the 
Directorship and the 
Membership of 
Committees of the 
board* 

Other Directorship- 1 
Other Committee 
Membership - NIL 

Other Directorship-1 
Other Committee Membership- NIL 

Names of listed 
entities from which 
the person has 
resigned in the 
three (3) years 

NIL NIL 

Disclosureof 
Relationships 
between Directors 
inter-se 

He is not related to any of 
other Directors of the Company 

He is not related to any of other 
Directors of the Company 

Information as 
required under BSE 
circular no. LIST/ 
COMP/14/2018-19 
dated June 20, 2018. 

We confirm that Mr. Sampath 
Rao Nemmani is not debarred 
from holding the office of 
Director by any SEBI order or 
any other such authority. 

We confirm that Mr. Naresh Reddy 
Vattipally is not debarred from holding 
the office of Director by any SEBI order 
or any other such authority. 

 
(*Committee includes Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholder Relationship across all Listed Companies including this company.) 
 

                   By order of the Board of the Directors  
      For, CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 
 
 
 

 

Place: Telangana 
Date: 23/08/2025 

SD/- 
SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00966068 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 

TO                  
THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY 

 
Your Directors feel great pleasure in presenting 14th Annual Report on the business and operations of 
the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2025. 

 
 
1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

S. N. PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

CURRENT YEAR 
ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2025 

PREVIOUS YEAR 
ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2024 

CURRENT YEAR 
ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2025 

01. Total Revenue (Net) 193.85 186.63 8565.03 

02. Other Income 84.40 39.02 1001.25 

03. Total Income 278.25 225.64 9566.28 

 
04. 

Profit before Depreciation 
& Amortization Expenses, 
Finance Cost and Tax 

81.87 84.65 756.84 

05. 
Less : Depreciation and 
Amortization Expenses 

0.03 - 110.89 

06. Finance Cost - - - 

07. Profit before Tax 81.84 84.65 403.52 

08. Less: Provision for Tax 6.21 20.20 144.21 

09. MAT Credit Entitlement - - - 

10. Profit after Tax 75.62 64.46 259.30 

11. 
Less :Prior period Tax 
Adjustment 

- - - 

12. Profit for the year 75.62 64.46 259.30 
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01. Earnings per share (Basic) 0.06 0.05 0.20 

02. Earnings per share (Diluted) 0.06 0.05 0.20 

 
2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

STANDALONE BASIS: 

During the year under review, Company's revenue from operations stood at Rs. 1,93,85,000/- compared 
to Rs. 1,86,63,000/- in the previous year. The operating profit before tax stood at Rs. 81,84,000/- as 
against Rs. 84,65,000/- in the Previous Year. The Net Profit for the year stood at Rs. 75,62,000/- as 
against Rs. 64,46,000/- reported in the Previous Year. 

 
CONSOLIDATED BASIS: 

 
During the year under review, Company's revenue from operations on consolidated basis stood at Rs. 
85,65,03,000/- during the year under review. The operating profit before tax on consolidated basis 
stood at Rs. 4,03,52,000/- during the year under review. The net profit for the year on a consolidated 
basis stood at Rs. 2,59,30,000/- during the year under review. 

 
3. DIVIDEND 

 
During the FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors on receipt of requisite approval from shareholders of the 
Company in the 13th AGM held on 30th September, 2024, had declared dividend at rate of 5% {i.e. Rs. 
0.05/- per equity share having face value of Rs. 1/- (Rupee One Only) each as a final dividend for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 
4. TRANSFER TO IEPF 
 
During the FY 2024-25, Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Tranfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the IEPF Rules”), all unpaid 
or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF; established by the 
Government of India, after completion of 7 (Seven) years. Further, according to the IEPF Rules, the 
shares on which dividend has not paid or claimed by the shareholders for 7 (Seven) consecutive years 
or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of IEPF Authority.  
 
However, Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 (Seven) 
years in Unpaid Dividend Account. Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be 
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 
5. RESERVES 

 
No transfers to reserves were made, as no appropriations were required to be made during the financial 
year under review. 
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6. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 
 
There was following change in share capital of the Company during the year 2024-25. 

 
The Company has increased its authorized share capital from Rs. 4,51,00,000/- (Rupees Four Crore Fifty 
One Lakh Only) divided into 4,51,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each to Rs. 13,00,00,000/- (Thirteen 
Crore Only) divided into 13,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1/- each at the Extra-ordinary General 
Meeting held on 29th July, 2024. 

The Company has issued 8,44,00,000 Bonus Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each on 12th August, 2024. 
Trading approval of 8,44,00,000 Bonus Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each was received on 30th August, 2024 
in which BSE has permitted to trade on the exchange with effect from Monday, September 2, 2024. 

 
The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 is Rs. 12,66,00,000/- (Rupees 
Twelve Crore Sixty Six Lakhs only) divided into 12,66,00,000 Equity shares of the face value of Re. 1/- 
(Rupee One) each. The said shares are listed on BSE Limited. 

7. DEMATERIALISATION OF EQUITY SHARES: 
 
As per direction of SEBI and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, the shares of the Company are under 
compulsory Demat form. The Company has established connectivity with both the Depositories i.e. 
National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited and the Demat 
activation number allotted to the Company is ISIN: INE176N01021. Presently shares are held in 
electronic and physical mode (99.99% of shares in Demat, 0.01% in physical mode). 

 
8. CHANGE IN MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL 

 
During the financial year 2024-25 as well as till the date of this report, there was following changes in the 
board of directors of the company. 

Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani, Independent Director of the Company has tendered her resignation from the 
position of Directorship vide her letter dated 28th January, 2025. 
Accordingly, the changes and revised structure of Board of Directors is as follows: 

 

 

SR 

NO. 

NAME OF THE 

DIRECTORS 

DESIGNATION DIN STATUS 

1. SUKUMAR REDDY 

GARLAPATHI 

Managing Director 00966068 Promoter/ 

Chairman 

2. SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI Executive Director 07999868 Non-Promoter 

3. PRATIK SURENDRAKUMAR 

SHAH 

Non-Executive 08233777 Independent 

Director 

4. 
NIDHI JAIN Non-Executive 09184058 Independent 

Director 
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9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the operations of the Company, as required under 
Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as 'Listing Regulations') and as 
approved by the Board of Directors, is provided in a separate section and forms an integral part of this 
Report and is appended as Annexure – I to this report. 
 
10. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule-V of Listing Regulations, Separate report on Corporate 
Governance forms an integral part of the Integrated Annual Report. The Report on Corporate 
Governance also contains certain disclosures required under the Companies Act, 2013. A certificate 
from Practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance with corporate governance norms, as 
stipulated under clause E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, is annexed as Annexure - VII to the 
Corporate Governance Report of Board Report. 
 
11. ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return of the Company will be placed on the website of the company pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 
2014, the web link of the same is at www.caspianservices.in 

 
12. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 
73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 
13. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 
them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 
2013: 

a. That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2025, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any; 

 
b. That the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for 
that period; 

 
c. That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

  
d. The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

  
e. That the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 
f. That the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

Page 28 of 163

http://www.caspianservices.in/


applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

 
14. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING / 

OUTGO: 

Details regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo are stated below: 

 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, details regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo for the year under review are as follows: 

 
Conservation of Energy 

 
Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – The Operations of the Company do not consume 
energy intensively. However, Company continues to implement prudent practices for saving electricity 
and other energy resources in day-to-day activities. 

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Though the activities undertaken 
by the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall explore alternative sources of energy, as 
and when the necessity arises. 

 
Technology Absorption 

 
The efforts made towards technology absorption – The Company continues to take prudential measures 
in respect of technology absorption, adaptation and take innovative steps to use the scarce resources 
effectively. 

 
In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year) – Not Applicable 

 
The Particulars of Foreign Exchange and Outgo for the year under review are: 

 

PARTICULARS YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNING 

Nil Nil 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
OUTGO 

Nil Nil 

 
15. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 
During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits as 
prescribed under provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) of Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
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The necessary disclosure with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required 
under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been appended as Annexure – III to this 
Report. 
 
16. CASH FLOW AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
As required by Regulation 34(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Cash Flow Statement is appended 

 
The company has a wholly owned subsidiary namely; Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited 
(SCSPL) w.e.f. 16th March, 2023 and as such acquisition was made in the financial year 2022-23; 
Accordingly, financial statements are prepared on a consolidated basis (i.e. including the financials of its 
subsidiary and associate companies.) 

 
17. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming 
that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed under section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1)(b) of Securities and Exchange Board of the India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
18. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
The Board received a declaration from all the directors under Section 164 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 that none of the directors of the company is disqualified 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) or under the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
Statement regarding opinion of the Board with regard to Integrity, Expertise and Experience 
(including the proficiency) of the Independent Directors appointed during the year: 
 
The Board of Directors have evaluated the Independent Directors appointed during the year 2024-
25 and opined that the integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency) of the Independent 
Directors is satisfactory. 
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(I) APPOINTMENT & RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS 
 
During the financial year 2024-25, there was following changes in the board of directors of the company. 
Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani, Independent Director of the Company has tendered her resignation from the 
position of Directorship vide her letter dated 28th January, 2025. 

 
Accordingly, at present, the structure of Board of Directors is as follows: 

 

SR. NO. DESIGNATION NAME OF DIRECTORS 

1 Executive Director Mr. Sampath Rao Nemmani 

2 Independent Director 

(Non-Executive) 

Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar Shah 

3 Independent Director 

(Non-Executive) 

Ms. Nidhi Jain 

4 Managing Director Mr. Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi 

 
(II) RETIREMENT BY ROTATION 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Sampath Rao Nemmani, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment and your Board recommends his re- 
appointment. 

 
As stipulated under the Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/re- 
appointed are given in the Notice convening 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 
(III) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
During the year under review, there were following changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
company. 
 
Ms. Hema Advani, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer (Key Managerial Personnel) of the 
Company has tendered her resignation from the position of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
(Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company vide her letter dated 24th June, 2024. 

 
Mr. Sarfraz Taherbhai Mulla was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer (Key 
Managerial Personnel) of the Company at the board meeting held on 26th July, 2024. 

 
2. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy 
apart from other Board business. A tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is 
informed to the Directors in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful 
participation in the meetings. 
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The notice of meeting of Directors and Committees is given well in advance to all the Directors of the 
Company. The agenda of the Board/Committee meetings is circulated not less than 7 days prior to the 
date of the meeting. The agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the 
items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision. 

During the year under review, 07 (Seven) Board Meetings were convened and the intervening gap 
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

NAME OF DIRECTOR CATEGORY MEETINGS 

HELD 

DURING 

YEAR 

MEETINGS 

ATTENDED 

Mr. Sukumar Reddy 

Garlapathi 

Managing Director 7 7 

Mr. Sampath Rao 

Nemmani 

Executive Director 7 7 

Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar 

Shah 

Independent Director 5 5 

Ms. Nidhi Jain Independent Director 5 5 

Mrs. Hetal Harshal 

Somani 

Independent Director 5 5 

 
3. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a 
separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 10th November, 2024 to 
review, among other things, the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as whole, 
evaluation of the performance of the Chairman and the flow of communication between the Board and 
the management of the Company. 

 
4. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 
The Company's Board has the following Committees: 

➢ Audit Committee 
➢ Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
➢ Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

(I) AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

During the year under review, the audit committee comprises of Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar Shah as 
chairman, Ms. Nidhi Jain and Mr. Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi as members of the Audit committee. 

 
Moreover, during the financial year 2024-2025, 06 (Six) meetings of Audit Committee were held on 30th 
May, 2024; 03rd July, 2024; 13th August, 2024; 04th September, 2024, 14th November, 2024; and 14th 
February, 2025. 
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The below table highlights the composition and attendance of the Members of the Committee. The 
requisite quorum was present at all the Meetings. 

 

NAME OF 

MEMBERS 

DESIGNATION EXPERTISE TERMS OF 
REFERENCE & 
FUNCTIONS OF THE 
COMMITTEE 

MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

Mr. Pratik Chairman Majority members are The functions of the 6 

Surendrakumar  Non-executive. Audit Committee are as  

Shah  Chairman is 
Independent Director 

per Company Law and 
Listing Regulations 

 

  and majority is prescribed by SEBI  
   

Ms. Nidhi Jain Member independent. One which include 6 
  member has thorough approving and  

  financial and implementing the audit  

Mr. Sukumar Member accounting knowledge. procedures, review of 6 

Reddy Garlapathi   financial reporting 
system, internal 

 

   control procedures and  

   risk management  

   policies.  

 

 
The Company Secretary has acted as the Secretary to the Committee. 

 
The Committee is empowered with the role and powers as prescribed under Regulation 18 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee also acts in terms of reference and 
directions of the Board from time to time. 

 
The Committee acts as a link between the management, external and internal auditors and the Board of 
Directors of the Company. 

 
(II) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Ms. Nidhi 
Jain as a Chairperson, Mr. Sukumar Reddy Garlapati and Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar Shah as members of 
the Nomination and Remuneration committee. 

 
Moreover, during the financial year 2024-2025, 05 (Five) meeting of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee were held on 30th May, 2024; 26th July, 2024; 13th August, 2024, 14th November, 2024; and 
14th February, 2025. 

 
The below table highlights the composition and attendance of members of the Committee. The requisite 
quorum was present at the Meeting. 
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NAME OF 

MEMBERS 

DESIGNATION FUNCTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

ATTENDED 

Mr. Sukumar Reddy 

Garlapati 

Member All members are Non-executive. 
 

The Committee is vested with the 
responsibilities to function as per 
SEBI Guidelines and recommends 
to the Board Compensation 
Package for the Managing Director. 
It also reviews from time to time 
the overall Compensation 
structure and related policies with 
a view to attract, motivate and 
retain employees. 

5 

Mr. Pratik 

Surendrakumar 

Shah 

Member 5 

Ms. Nidhi Jain Chairman 5 

 
The Company Secretary has acted as the Secretary to the Committee. 
 
The Committee is empowered with the role and powers as prescribed under Regulation 19 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
The Committee also acts in terms of reference and directions of the Board from time-to-time. 

 
The Board of Directors has framed “Remuneration and Nomination Policy” which lays down a 
framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
of the Company. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. 
The said Policy is annexed herewith as Annexure - II to this report. 

 
(III) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of Ms. Nidhi Jain, as 
a Chairperson; Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar Shah and Mr. Sukumar Reddy Garlapati as members of the 
Stakeholders Relationship committee. 

 
Moreover, during the financial year 2024-2025, 04 (Four) meetings of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee were held on 30th May, 2024; 13th August, 2024; 14th November, 2024; and 14th February, 
2025. 

The below table highlights the composition and attendance of the members of the Committee. The 
requisite quorum was present at the Meeting. 
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NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED 

Ms. Nidhi Jain Chairman 4 

Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar Shah Member 4 

Mr. Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi Member 4 

 
The Company Secretary has acted as the Secretary to the Committee. 

 
The SRC Committee deals with stakeholder relations and redressal of investors' complaints pertaining 
to share transfer, non-receipt of annual reports, dividend payments, issue of duplicate share certificate, 
transmission of shares and other miscellaneous complaints. In accordance with Regulation 6 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has authorized the 
Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PVT. LTD. to approve the 
share transfers / transmissions and to comply with other formalities in relation thereto in coordination 
with the Compliance Officer of the Company. All the investors' complaints, which cannot be settled at the 
level RTA and the Compliance Officer, will be placed before the Committee for final settlement. 

The detailed particulars of Stakeholders complaints handled by the Company and its Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent during the year 2024-25 are as under: 

 

 
NATURE OF COMPLAINTS 

OPENING AT THE 

BEGINNING 

OF YEAR 

RECEIVED 

DURING THE 

YEAR 

 
REDRESSED 

PENDING AT 

THE END OF 
YEAR 

Non-receipt of Share 

Certificate 

Nil Nil -- Nil 

Non-receipt of Dividend/ 

Interest/ Redemption 

Warrant 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
-- 

 
Nil 

Non-receipt of Annual 

Report 

Nil Nil -- Nil 

Others Nil Nil -- Nil 

Total Nil Nil -- Nil 

 
 
19. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION BY THE BOARD 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, a structured questionnaire was 
prepared after taking into consideration the various aspects of the Board's functioning, composition of 
the Board and its Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and 
governance. The performance evaluation of the Directors was completed during the year under review. 

 
The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the 
Independent Directors and Non-Executive Director. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction 
with the evaluation process. 
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20. DIRECTORS TRAINING AND FAMILIARIZATION 

The Company undertakes and makes necessary provision of an appropriate induction programme for 
new Director(s) and ongoing training for existing Directors. The new Director(s) are introduced to the 
Company culture, through appropriate training programmes. Such kind of training programmes helps 
develop relationship of the directors with the Company and familiarize them with Company processes. 
The management provides such information and training either at the meeting of Board of Directors or 
at other places. 

 
The induction process is designed to: 

 
• build an understanding of the Company's processes and 
• fully equip Directors to perform their role on the Board effectively. 

 
Upon appointment, Directors receive a Letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of 
appointment, duties, responsibilities and expectations from them. 
 
21. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR: 

 
As per the statutory auditors' report, no frauds u/s 143 (12) were reported for F.Y. 2024-25. 

 
22. AUDITORS 

 
(I) STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 
M/s MAAK & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (FRN: 135024W), were appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 05 (Five) years from the conclusion of the 10th Annual 
General Meeting held on 30th September, 2021 till the conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting. 

 
Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and do not call for 
any further comments. The Auditor's Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark. 

 
(II) INTERNAL AUDITORS: 

 
Pursuant to Provision of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, the Board of Directors on recommendation of Audit Committee has appointed M/s. Shah Sanghvi 
& Associates and Company, Chartered Accountants as an Internal Auditor of Company. The Internal 
Auditors submit their reports on quarterly basis to the Audit Committee. 

 
Based on the report of internal audit function undertake corrective action in their respective areas and 
thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are 
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 
(III) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

Page 36 of 163



 
 
a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed Ms. 
Shalini Pandey, Practicing Company Secretary and Proprietor of M/s. Shalini Pandey & Associates, to 
conduct Secretarial Audit of the company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 

b) Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s. Shalini Pandey & Associates, Company Secretaries in Form 
MR- 3 is annexed herewith as Annexure IV and forms an integral part of this Report. 

 
The explanations / comments made by the Board relating to the qualifications, reservations or adverse 
remarks made by the Secretarial Auditors as follows: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Qualifications, Reservations, or adverse 

remarks by the Secretarial Auditors 

Management Reply 

01. The Company was not in compliance with 

informed the stock exchange about the Corporate 

Guarantee on behalf of the wholly owned 

subsidiary company and resignation of 

Independent Director within 24 hours as per 

Regulation 30 of Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligation And Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

The Company has made compliance of 

the same in delay manner and has 

taken due action in order to ensure 

timely compliance in future too. 

02. The Company had not appointed at least one 

independent director on the board of directors of 

an unlisted material subsidiary i.e Sumathi 

Corporate Services Private Limited as per 

Regulation 24 of Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligation And Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 

The Company is looking for suitable 

candidate to be appointed as 

Independent Director on its Board as 

well as on the Board of its material 

subsidiaries. The management had 

given assurance to comply with 

regulation. 

 
(IV) MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is not required to 
maintain Cost Records under said Rules. 
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23. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 
 
The company has in place Internal Financial Control system, commensurate with size & complexity of its 
operations to ensure proper recording of financial and operational information & compliance of various 
internal controls & other regulatory & statutory compliances. During the year under review, no 
material or serious observation has been received from the Internal Auditors of the Company for 
inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

 
Internal Auditors' comprising of professional Chartered Accountants monitor & evaluate the efficacy 
of Internal Financial Control system in the company, its compliance with operating system, 
accounting procedures & policies at all the locations of the company. The Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors are periodically apprised of the internal audit findings and 
corrective actions taken. Audit plays a key role in providing assurance to the Board of Directors. 
Significant audit observations and corrective actions taken by the management are presented to the 
Audit Committee of the Board. 

 
24. REMUNERATION / COMMISSION DRAWN FROM HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: 
 
During the year under review, none of the companies have transitioned to or from being our 
Company’s holding company, accordingly, there is no point for remuneration drawn from holding 
company. 
 
Further during the year under review, no director has drawn remuneration or commission from any 
of its subsidiary company. 
 
25. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 
 
The Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report for the year ended March 31, 2025 as 
stipulated under Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations is not applicable to the Company. 
 
26. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE 

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES: 

As the Company is not having net worth of Rupees Five Hundred Crores or more, or turnover of Rupees 
One Thousand Crores or more or a Net Profit of Rupees Five Crores or more during any financial year, 

 
The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
with the regard to the formation of the CSR Committee and undertaking of Social Expenditure as 
required under the said Section. 
 
27. INSURANCE 
 
All the insurable interests of your company including properties, equipments, stocks etc., are 
adequately insured. 
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28. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT VENTURES 

 
Your Company has one Wholly Owned Subsidiary named Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited 
but does not have any Joint Venture or Associate Companies. The Report on the performance and 
financial position of subsidiary in Form AOC-1 pursuant to first proviso to Sub-section (3) of Section 129 
of the Act and Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure – V. 
 
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length 
basis, in the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Act and the Listing Regulations. 

 
There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. 
Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are repetitive in 
nature. 

 
A statement of all Related Party Transactions is placed before the Audit Committee for its review on a 
quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions, if any. The 
Company has adopted a Related Party Transactions Policy. 

 
The details have been enclosed pursuant to clause (h) of subsection (3) of Section 134 of Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 – 'AOC-2'- Annexure VI. 

 
 
30. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY: 

 
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments, if any taken or given, have been disclosed in the 
financial Statement for the F.Y. 2024-25. 
 
31. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY 
 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the 
date of the report. 
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32. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 
In pursuance to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism / 
Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. 

 
The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has adopted a mechanism of 
reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a whistle blower policy wherein the employees 
are free to report violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct to their immediate 
supervisor or such other person as may be notified by the management to the employees / workers. The 
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors and employees 
who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee 
in the exceptional cases. The confidentiality of those reporting violation is maintained and they are not 
subjected to any discriminatory practice. However, no violation of laws or unethical conduct etc. was 
brought to the notice of the Management or Audit Committee during the year ended 31st March, 2024. 
We affirm that during the financial year 2024-25, no employee or director was denied access to the Audit 
Committee. 
 
33. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 
Your Company has an elaborated Risk Management procedure and adopted systematic approach to 
mitigate risk associated with accomplishment of objectives, operations, revenues and regulations. Your 
Company believes that this would ensure mitigating steps proactively and help to achieve stated 
objectives. The entity's objectives can be viewed in the context of four categories Strategic, Operations, 
Reporting and Compliance. The Risk Management process of the Company focuses on three elements, 
viz. (1) Risk Assessment; (2) Risk Management; (3) Risk Monitoring. 

 
Audit Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in (a) Overseeing and 
approving the Company's enterprise wide risk management framework; and (b) Overseeing that all the 
risk that the organization faces. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit 
Committee of the Company. Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to 
the Audit Committee. The Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those 
relating to strengthening of the Company's risk management policies and systems. 

 
34. POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

 
Your company believes in providing a healthy, safe and harassment-free workplace for all its employees. 
Further company ensures that every women employee is treated with dignity and respect. 

 
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy as per the requirements of The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with all the provisions of the POSH 
Act and the rules framed thereunder. Further details are as follows:
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a. Number of complaints of Sexual Harassment received in the Year NIL 

b. Number of Complaints disposed off during the year NIL 

c. Number of cases pending for more than ninety days NIL 

 
35. Details of Application made or proceeding pending under Insolvency And Bankruptcy Code 

2016 
 
During the year under the review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name 
of the company under the insolvency and bankruptcy code, 2016. 

 
36. Details of Difference between valuation amount on one time settlement and valuation while 

availing loan from banks and financial institutions. 
 
During the year under the review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from banks and 
financial institutions. 

 
37. MATERNITY BENEFIT 

 
The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, 
and has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women employees during the year. 

 
38. GENERAL DISCLOSURE 

 
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 
were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
2. Issue of shares (sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under ESOS. 
3. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact 
the going concern status and Company operations in future. 
4. During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect 
of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read 
with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
5. The Company has not issued any equity shares during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
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ANNEXURE-I 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
KEY ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY TRENDS 

The Staffing an Recruitment Market is poised for significant growth, projected to reach a remarkable US 
$ 2031.34 billion by 2031, up from US $ 757.56 billion in 2023, reflecting a robust CAGR of 13.1% from 
2023 to 2031. This expansion is driven by the increasing job opportunities in the BFSI and IT Sectors, 
alongside a rising youth population eager to enter the workforce. Key trends shaping the market include 
the integration of automation and Al-driven recruitment processes, which enhances efficiency and 
candidate matching. As businesses increasingly adopt remote working and hybrid models, the staffing 
and Recruitment Market is expected to adapt, offering innovative solutions to meet evolving demands. 

 
While on the one hand, employers are beginning to show their increased reliance on flexible staffing to 
meet their business imperatives, the regulatory environment in India is also beginning to ease, making it 
easier for the employers and the staffing players. The future of the staffing industry is also linked to the 
job scene in the country. 

 
The industry offers various staffing models, including temporary staffing, permanent staffing, contract 
staffing, and gig or freelance staffing. Temporary staffing remains the most common, but other models 
are gaining popularity as businesses seek greater flexibility in managing their workforce. 

There are five distinctive trends that will have a bearing on the industry and will drive the next phase of 
growth: 

 
I. Skill and talent gap issues in India 

 
India Inc. needs an industry-ready and job-ready workforce but is facing an acute talent and skill crunch. 
More than 60% of the 8 lakh engineers graduating from technical institutions across the country every 
year remain unemployed, according to the advisory body, the All India Council for Technical Education. 

 
Up to 39% employers state that attracting and finding quality talent is one of the most challenging 
aspects. Remember, 90% of jobs are skill-based, and only 2% of the population (in the 15–25 age group) 
is currently enrolled for vocational training, compared with 60–80% worldwide.This apart, talent 
attraction, engagement, and retention remain a big challenge for most employers. 

 
Against this grim backdrop, employers are looking at contingent staffing in a big way. This represents a 
huge business opportunity for the staffing industry. The industry has to play its part as well in 
addressing the skill and talent issue for the economy as a whole. 
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II. Rise of the Gig Economy in India 

 
While the gig economy is in its infancy in India, it is expected to grow in the near future, much like it has 
grown in the US and other developed markets. A recent study by McKinsey has estimated that up to 
20–30% of the workforce in developed markets is engaged in independent work. A recent survey by 
Flexing It, a platform for independent consultants, indicates that more than a third of the 500-plus 
organisations surveyed in India expect to rely up to 50% on flexible talent in the next five years. This will 
have a bearing on the talent strategy of organisations, and therefore should be an important area of 
focus for the staffing companies in India 

 
III. The rise of digital staffing platforms 

 
Given the rise in need for contingent staffing, several digital staffing platforms, such as Upwork, Shiftgig, 
and Catalant have emerged overseas. These companies match the talent needs of enterprises and the job 
requirements of individuals in a cost-effective manner. They are expected to be present in India. This 
represents a risk and an opportunity for traditional staffing companies. While they represent 
competition, it can also force the traditional players to go digital and look at diversifying their offerings 
and building or acquiring digital platform capabilities. This will also lead to M&A s and consolidation, as 
the staffing players will look to acquire digital platforms to build scale, reach, and access. 

 
IV. Technology as an enabler and differentiator 

 
Technology will become an important enabler and differentiator for staffing companies. They would 
need to increase their investments in automation for improving efficiencies and technology for 
improving the hiring and recruitment processes. For example, AI can help automate up to 75 percent of 
the recruitment process. Of all the staffing industry trends AI is ready to shake up the marketplace in 
terms of efficiency. AI has the ability to focus on candidate skill levels over unconscious biases. It will 
also help reduce the time for sourcing, keep you organised, and help analyse big data. Clients would also 
expect staffing firms to provide productive employees, not just employees, and this would mean 
investment in technology-enabled productivity improvement solutions. Staffing firms will need to 
invest in automation solutions for time, attendance, and expense management to increase operating 
efficiency and improve accuracy for compliance and approvals. The growth of contingent labor, the 
transition from on-premise to software-as-a-service-based solutions, and the heightened awareness for 
tracking the hourly workforce will create demand for technology-aided solutions. It will become an 
important source of revenue for staffing companies in the future. 

V. Candidate experience and employee engagement 
 
Given that recruitment is a significant cost element, staffing companies need to improve their talent 
sourcing capabilities to improve targeting while reducing cost. While investment in recruitment 
technology will be one aspect of this, they also need to focus on a candidate's hiring experience. Today, 
social and digital technologies, coupled with newer forms of engagement and assessment through 
gamification, provide companies with newer avenues to engage effectively with their candidates. Once 
hired, companies will need to focus on talent from an employee engagement perspective. Millennials 
have different aspirations, and they have their own requirements from any employer. So it is important 
to manage them effectively. Candidate experience and employee engagement are critical to building a 
strong word-of-mouth for the brand, improve the attractiveness as an employer, and driving referrals. 
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Referrals have emerged as one of the cost effective channels for continent hiring, and it will become 
critical for staffing companies to tap into this. 

 
In the words of Dwight D Eisenhower, “In preparing for battle, I have always found that plans are useless, 
but planning is indispensable.”. While we can never predict the future, showing up unprepared shall be 
inexcusable. 

 
BUSINESS SEGMENT: 

 
The Company is offering integrated service delivery model includes a wide range of services such as 
mentioned below: 

 
- FMS, Housekeeping Services 
- Security Services, 
- Property Management Services, 
- Office Support Services 
- M&E Services 
- Pest Control Services 
- Disinfection Services and Customer Support 
- Health, Safety and Environment 
- Management Services 
- MIS Reporting 
- Electro Mechanical Services and Management 
- BMS/Fire Alarms and Security Management 
- Vendor Management 
- Workplace Facilities Management 
- General Repairs and Maintenance 
- Business Continuity Planning Management 

 
We add value to our customers' organization by letting them concentrate on their core business 
competencies while we manage and deliver a top-notch Integrated services across India, creating a win- 
win situation! With over 12+ years of domain expertise and in-depth understanding of industry 
standards and practices, we provide a complete solution to cater to the growing needs of organization. 

As a globally recognized workforce management services provider, we offer end-to-end HRO services 
that are aimed at solving complex HR challenges. From customized staffing services, expert talent 
acquisition, search and recruitment, payroll compliance, training and skill development, to managed 
workforce solutions, Caspian Services provides all the tools necessary to drive your business growth. 

 
BUSINESS SERVICES 

WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT 

As a globally recognized workforce management services provider, we offer end-to-end HRO services 
that are aimed at solving complex HR challenges. From customized staffing services, expert talent 
acquisition, search and recruitment, payroll compliance, training and skill development, to managed 
workforce solutions, Caspian Services provides all the tools necessary to drive your business growth. 
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STAFFING SOLUTIONS 

 
Caspian Services Staffing, caters to some of the biggest brands in the country. Our proven track record of 
delivering world-class staffing solutions enables us to oversee the entire recruitment process from 
assessing candidates to recruitment while reducing the cost of staffing. Our skilled workforce, efficient 
operations, and commitment to excellence have made us the go-to company for staffing solutions in 
India – be it for customized retail requirements or temporary staffing solutions. 

 
IT STAFFING 

 
Our approach towards hiring the best IT talent enables us to find prospective employees who share the 
vision of the company's overarching goals and objectives—making us one of the most sought after and 
largest staffing firms in the country. With our up-skilling services, we train the organization's workforce 
to effectively meet industry challenges. 

 
HEALTH SERVICES 

 
We influence and enhance the talent-hiring of the healthcare industry by providing premium staffing 
services to organizations seeking quality talents. In collaboration with the Association of Healthcare 
Providers India (AHPI), we formalise training and staffing services for healthcare professionals and 
create a marketplace for both public and private institutions to source competitive talents meeting their 
organizational goals quickly and on-demand. 

 
Leveraging our extensive experience of our Hire-Train-Deploy model, we help institutions create a 
pipeline of trained paramedical and healthcare professionals in addition to developing a digital talent 
pool of skilled, experienced doctors across India who are ready to be hired. Our process involves a deep 
understanding of the institution and its culture to find the right match of skills and expertise needed for 
its success. 

 
FACILITY MANAGEMENT 

 
Our Facility Management services team uses a combination of technology, engineered processes, and 
skilled human resources to efficiently manage for our clients. 

We have built a technology platform to streamline our service delivery and operations across India with 
4700+ employees. 

 
o Housekeeping and Janitorial Services 
o Horticulture 
o Waste Management Services 
o Facade Cleaning 
o Guest House Management 
o Pantry Management 

 
PAYROLL MANAGEMENT 

 
Payroll management by the company is much of a time consuming if there are fewer resources. 
Therefore the majority of the companies consider outsourcing for their payroll-related task. 
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Caspian Corporate Services ensures an error-free payroll process. All the payroll related job is handled 
by our professionals. We help you in eliminating the burden of payroll management. We also ensure you 
to re-deploy resources and to focus on other critical business activities that can boost your company's 
growth and build competitive advantage. 

 
FRONT OFFICE MANAGEMENT 

 
Front office management has been defined as the managing the major departments of an organization 
like sales staff, customer service staff etc. who generally come in contact with the customers. We swear 
by and our professionals will do everything to set a good first impression to visitors. 

 
The first point of contact leaves an excellent, lasting impression and reflects the culture of our clients' 
organization. 

 
o Welcome the customers/guests 
o Giving the required and crisp information 
o Handling the arrival and departure register. 
o Handling complaints and also resolving them 
o Taking care of payment collection (if required) 
o Coordination with various linked departments 
o Keeping a record of guests (profile) for future use 

 
SKILL DEVELOPMENT 

 
As a Category a Implementation Agency, we believe in going the extra mile towards Empowering youth 
with focused attention to Women Empowerment through our interventions. 

 
We take pride in an extensive network of Women-centric Training Centers spread across the country. 
The majority of our enrolled beneficiaries comprises of female candidates and we put in our best efforts 
into making the journey of Financial Freedom and Self-reliance for Women a bright and shining example 
for many others to follow. 

 
We believe in Educating beyond the curriculum and Making an Impact as we go! Special initiative 
conducting Blood donation camps, Iron pills and Sanitary napkin distribution along with free medical 
check-up are organized on regular basis. We believe that wholesome development of the candidates 
calls for healthy body, mind and spirit. Along with the medical assistance, we set in place multiple 
channels for extracurricular activities and exposure for our trainees. Early on in the training programs, 
the candidates are made aware of the major issues that have environmental, social and economic 
implications in the current times. We conduct multiple road shows and awareness sessions to 
encourage the candidates. 

GROUND HANDLING 
 
Caspian Corporate Services has entered into Airport Ground Handling. We are providing quality 
services at all airports of India. Timely and efficient ground handling services reduce delay and enhance 
on time performance. 
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We take pride in an extensive network of Women-centric Training Centers spread across the country. 
The majority of our enrolled beneficiaries comprises of female candidates and we put in our best efforts 
into making the journey of Financial Freedom and Self-reliance for Women a bright and shining example 
for many others to follow. 

 
We offer a complete range of services for all type of aircrafts. 

 
o Passenger Handling 
o Cargo Handling 
o Ramp Handling 
o Loading and unloading of aircraft 
o Pushback and towing 
o Marshaling 
o Crew support 
o Flight documentation and planning 

 
STRENGTH AND WEAKNESSES: 

 
STRENGTH: 

 
One-stop-shop for multiple services 
Comprehensive  expertise  
Strong team of experts 
Industry-specific knowledge 
Strong technical team 
Enhanced problem-solving 

 
WEAKNESSES: 

 
Competition 
Resistance to change 
High cost 
Time-consuming engagements 

Few Local players at times disturb regular business flow through offering of notional benefits to the 
customers. 

 
OUTLOOK 

 
Staffing Services: 

 
HR leaders are realizing the advantage of hiring a contract workforce as this gives them the flexibility to 
scale their workforce as per project requirements. Thus, shedding the conventional form of hiring 
practices and relying on Staffing Companies to meet their manpower demands. 

 
Now, the IT workforce is changing, especially considering the pandemic. A contingent work force is the 
solution to today's workplace problems. The IT staffing industry is constantly evolving and changing to 
meet today's work requirements and standards. 
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STRATEGIC RESPONSES TO OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

 

OPPORTUNITY / THREAT 
 
 
 

 
COMPANY’S APPROACH 

Competition Our Company faces significant competit ion from other 

companies operating in the markets in India as well as 

overseas in which we operate. Some of these firms have 

greater resources and/or a more widely known brand 

than we have, which may give them a competitive 

advantage. 

 

 
Although we have sa tisfactory business relations with 

our clients and have received continued business from 

them in the past, there is no certainty that the same will 

continue in the years to come and may affect our 

profitability. 

Growth in the Indian economy General economic conditions in India have a significant 

impact on our results of operations. The Indian 

economy has grown rapidly over the past decade and is 

expected to continue to grow in the future. We believe 

growth in the overall economy has driven, and will 

drive, the underlying demand for our products. 

Fluctuations in demand for our services Supply and demand market conditions are affected by 

various factors outside our control, including: 

 Prevailing local economic, income and demographic 

conditions and changes in applicable regulatory 

schemes 

 

 
RISKS AND CONCERNS: 

 
There are a set of risk factors which have been evaluated. This includes competition, pricing and 
margins, investment rationale on products, country of export as all of these contribute to key decision 
making. A balance in contribution from countries, products and key accounts has thereby been 
assessed, with proper adherence to ever changing regulatory and environment, health and safety 
norms. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

 
The Company has adequate systems of Internal Controls commensurate with its size and operations to 
ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. These controls ensure safeguarding of assets, 
reduction and detection of fraud and error, adequacy and completeness of the accounting records and 
timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
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Financial Year 

(In Rs.) 

2022-2023 1,36,36,000 

2023-2024 2,25,64,000 

2024-2025 2,78,25,000 

 

 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

 
The discussions in this section relate to the Rupee-denominated financial results pertaining to the year 
that ended March 31, 2025. The financial statements of CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) are prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (referred to as 'Ind AS') prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time. 
Significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are disclosed in the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. The following table gives an overview of the financial 
results of the company: 

 
Financial Highlights 

Standalone Basis: 

During the year under review, the company has achieved revenue from operations of Rs. 1,93,85,000/- 
and incurred profit amounting to Rs. 75,62,000/- as compared to the previous Financial Year 2023- 
2024 where the Revenue from Operations was Rs. 1,86,63,000/-and Profit after tax was Rs. 64,46,000/-. 
The Basic and Diluted Earnings per share of the company as on 31st March, 2025 stands at Rs. 0.06/-. 

 
Consolidated Basis: 

 
During the year under review, Company's revenue from operations on consolidated basis stood at Rs. 
85,65,03,000/- during the year under review. The operating profit before tax on consolidated basis 
stood at Rs. 4,03,52,000/- during the year under review. The net profit for the year on a consolidated 
basis stood at Rs. 2,59,30,000/- during the year under review. The Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 
of the company as on 31st March, 2025 stands at Rs. 0.20/-. 

 
Or below charts 

(I)Total  Income  

(On Standalone Basis) 
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(On Consolidated Basis) 

 

 
Financial Year 

(In Rs.) 

2022-2023 1,36,36,000 

2023-2024 90,33,36,000 

2024-2025 95,66,28,000 

 
(II)Profit before Tax (PBT) 

(On Standalone Basis) 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
(On Consolidated Basis) 

 

 
Financial Year 

(In Rs.) 

2022-2023 64,14,000 

2023-2024 8,75,37,000 

2024-2025 4,03,52,000 

 
(III) Profit for the year 

(On Standalone Basis) 

 
Financial Year 

(In Rs.) 

2022-2023 65,09,000 

2023-2024 84,65,000 

2024-2025 81,84,000 
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(On Consolidated Basis) 
 

Financial Year (In Rs.) 

2022-2023 43,99,000 

2023-2024 7,92,75,000 

2024-2025 2,59,30,000 

 

 
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Current Ratio 2.28 0.88 

Debt-Equity Ratio NA NA 

Interest coverage ratio NA NA 

Return on Equity Ratio 4.00% 03.43% 

Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA 

Trade Receivable Turnover 
Ratio 

1.73 1.39 

Trade Payables Turnover 
Ratio 

NA NA 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio 1.33 -5.22 

Net Profit Ratio 0.39 0,35 

Return on Capital Employed 0.04 0.05 

Return on Investment 0.04 0.03 

Financial Year (In Rs.) 

2022-2023 44,94,000 

2023-2024 64,46,000 

2024-2025 75,62,000 
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 
Your Company has undertaken certain employees' development initiatives, which have very positive 
impact on the morale and team spirit of the employees. The Company has continued to give special 
attention to Human Resources/Industrial Relations development. Industrial relations remained cordial 
throughout the year. We are also concentrating on building up of our Human Resource Capital especially 
in our Sales Team by undertaking various R& D activities. We are also creating adequate support 
systems at our HO which will provide requisite knowledge and data to our sales team. These activities 
will lead to a more informed and motivated sales team. 

 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 
Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report, describing the Company's objectives, 
estimates and expectations may constitute 'Forward Looking Statements' within the meaning of 
applicable laws or regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or 
implied. 

 
For and on behalf of CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 
 

SD/- SD/- 
SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI 

MANAGING DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00966068  DIN: 07999868 

 
 
Place: Telangana 
Date: 23/08/2025 
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ANNEXURE II  

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
OBJECTIVE 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The Key Objectives of the 
Committee would be: 

 
• To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and Senior Management; 
• To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board 

for further evaluation of the Board; 
• To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and Senior Management; 
• To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their 

effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations; 
• To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial 

persons and create competitive advantage; 
• To devise a policy on Board diversity; 
• To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan. 

 
ROLE OF COMMITTEE 

 
The Committee shall: 

 
• Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director. 
• Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key 

Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this 
policy. 

• Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel. 

 
POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 
Appointment criteria and qualifications 

• The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the 
Board his / her appointment. 

• A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is 
considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, 
expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned 
position. 
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The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who 
has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be 
extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special 
resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the 
justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 

 
Term / Tenure 

Managing Director/Whole-time Director: The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its 
Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a 
time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

 
Independent Director: An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years 
on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by 
the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

 
No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly. 

 
Evaluation 

 
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly). 

 
Removal 

 
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and 
regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, 
removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance 
of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

 
Retirement 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 
Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, 
KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after 
attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

 
FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 

 
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
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• The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being 

independent. 
• Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 
• Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
• Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 
• Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a 

Chairman of the Committee. 
• In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall 

choose one amongst them to act as Chairperson. 
• Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual 

General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders' queries. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
• A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is 

discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 
• The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings 

of the Committee. 
 
VOTING 

 
• Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of 

Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the 
Committee. 

• In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 
 
REMUNERATION TO NON- EXECUTIVE / INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 
Remuneration / Commission: The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and 
conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act. 

 
Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for 
attending meetings of Board or Committee. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs 1 
Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central 
Government from time to time. 

Commission: Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to 
the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of 
the Act. 

 
Stock Options: An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 

 
NOMINATION DUTIES 

Page 56 of 163



 
 
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include: 

 
• Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior 

Management and reviewing its effectiveness; 
• Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of 

appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act; 
• Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation; 
• Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board; 
• Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the 

Board; 
• Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the 

Company's performance from business and compliance perspective; 
• Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office 

of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive 
Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service 
contract; 

• Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee; 
• Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and 
• Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board. 

REMUNERATION DUTIES 
 
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include: 

 
• To consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in 

mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of 
the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the 
remuneration of the members of the Board. 

• To approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the 
Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company. 

• To delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members of the Committee. 
• To consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board. 

 
For and on behalf of CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 
 
 

SD/- SD/- 
SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI 
MANAGING DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00966068  DIN: 07999868 

 
 
Place: Telangana 
Date: 23/08/2025 
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ANNEXURE III 

 
DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED 

UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 

 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 
1) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary during the financial year 2024-25 and the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 
median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Director/Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Remuneration 

2024-25 (p.a.) 

INR 

Remuneration 

2023-24 (p.a.) 

INR 

Percent-age 

(%) 

Change 

Ratio of 

Remuneration of 

each Director to 

the Median 

Remuneration of 

Employees 

1. Sukumar Reddy 

Garlapathi 

Nil /- Nil Nil - 

2. Sampath Rao 

Nemmani 

Rs. 2,50,000/- Nil Nil 1.69:1 

3. Hema Lakhmichand 

Advani 

Rs. 50,400/- Rs. 2,16,000/- Nil 0.34:1 

4. Laxmi Narayana 

Punna 

Rs. 4,41,902/- Rs. 4,43,526/- Nil 2.99:1 

5. Sarfraz Taherbhai 

Mulla 

Rs. 1,47,483/- NIL Nil 1:1 

 
Ms. Hema Lakhmichand Advani, has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer on 24th June, 2024. Hence, her remuneration for last financial year was not comparable. 

 
Mr. Sarfraz Taherbhai Mulla was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company, effective from 26th 
July, 2024, Hence, Ratio of the Remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees 
not comparable. 
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2) The company has not paid any remuneration (except sitting fee) to the Non-Executive Directors of the 
company during the financial year under review (i.e. FY 2024-2025) 

 

Independent/Non-Executive 

Directors 

Sitting fee Ratio to Median Remuneration 

Pratik Surendrakumar Shah Rs. 1,00,000/- 0.67:1 

Nidhi Jain Rs. 1,00,000/- 0.67:1 

Hetal Harshal Somani Rs. 1,00,000/- 0.67:1 

 
3) The percentage of increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 47.48% 

 
4) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 2 

 
5) The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was: Rs. 147,483/- 

 
6) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy: The Company affirms that the 
remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 
STATEMENT CONTAINING NAMES OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN AND 
THE PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE ACT READ WITH 
RULE 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
 

Name Designation Remuneration Nature of 
Employm
ent 

Date of 
joining 

Age Previous 
Employment 

Shareholdi
ng in the 
Company 

Laxmi 
Narayana 
Punna 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

Rs. 4,41,902/- Regular  08/02/2022 39 
Years 

Carnation Variety 
Auto Private 
Limited 

NIL 

Sarfraz 
Taherbhai 
Mulla 

Company 
Secretary 

Rs. 1,47,483/- Regular 26/07/2024 31 
Years 

Hunger Choice 
Limited 

NIL 

For and on behalf of CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 

 
 
 

SD/- SD/- 
SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI 

MANAGING DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00966068  DIN: 07999868 

 
 
Place: Telangana 
Date: 23/08/2025 
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ANNEXURE - IV 

 
FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To,       
The Members of 
CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
F - BLOCK, 105, FIRST FLOOR, SURYA TOWERS, SARDAR PATEL ROAD, 
SECUNDERABAD, HYDERABAD, HYDERABAD, TELANGANA, INDIA, 500003 

 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED (CIN: 
L74110TG2011PLC162524) (hereinafter called the “Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 
Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- 
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter. 

 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, according to the 
provisions of: - 

 
1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; as applicable. 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): 

 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

Page 60 of 163



 
 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993. (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulation, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
I. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

We have also examined Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except: 

 
1. The Company was not in compliance with informed the stock exchange about the Corporate 
Guarantee on behalf of the wholly owned subsidiary company and resignation of Independent Director 
within 24 hours as per Regulation 30 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation And 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

 
2. The Company had not appointed at least one independent director on the board of directors of an 
unlisted material subsidiary i.e Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited as per Regulation 24 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015. 

 
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent with shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 

 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. 

 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report that during the period under review, the company had following events which has 
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
standards, etc. 

 
The Company in its board meeting held today i.e. 12th August, 2024 has approved the allotment of 
8,44,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Re. 1/- each as fully paid up bonus equity shares, in the ratio of 
Two (2) Equity Shares for every one (1) existing Equity Shares, to the Members whose names appeared 
in the List of beneficial owners as on Friday, 09th August, 2024, being the record date fixed for that 
purpose. 
Consequently, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company stands increased from Rs. 4,22,00,000/- 
comprising 4,22,00,000 equity shares of Re. 1/- each to Rs. 12,66,00,000/- comprising  
12,66,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each, 

FOR, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
 
 

                  SD/ 
_______________________ 

CS SHALINI PANDEY 
Date: 23/08/2025                C.O.P. NO. – 20576  
Place: Mumbai         FCS NO. 10462 
UDIN: F010462G001068068                PRC NO: 5756/2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - A and forms an 
integral part of this report.
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Annexure -A’ 

 
To,     
The Members 
CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
F - BLOCK, 105, FIRST FLOOR, SURYA TOWERS, SARDAR PATEL ROAD, 
SECUNDERABAD, HYDERABAD, HYDERABAD, TELANGANA, INDIA, 500003 

 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company. 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
test basis. 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
FOR, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES, 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 
 

 
 SD/-   
_______________________ 

CS SHALINI PANDEY 
Date: 23/08/2025                C.O.P. NO. – 20576  
Place: Mumbai         FCS NO. 10462 
UDIN: F010462G001068068                PRC NO: 5756/2024 
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ANNEXURE - V 
FORM AOC-I 

 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate 
Companies/Joint Ventures as per the Companies Act, 2013 

 

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES  
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

Sr. No. 1 2 

Name of the Subsidiary/Step Down Subsidiary SUMATHI CORPORATE 

SERVICES PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

(Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary) 

SUMATHI BRIGHT 

SHINE AIRPORT 

SERVICES PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

(Step Down Subsidiary) 

The date since when subsidiary was acquired 16/03/2023 09/11/2021 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

from the holding company’s reporting period 

01/04/2024 To 

31/03/2025 

01/04/2024 To 

31/03/2025 

Share Capital 450.00 15.00 

Reserve & Surplus 2,300.44 (119.34) 

Total Assets 7962.05 771.22 

Total Liabilities 5,211.61 875.56 

Investments 38.35 NIL 

Turnover 8,371.18 NIL 

Profit before taxation 455.10 (133.42) 

Provision for taxation 165.81 27.81 

Profit after taxation 289.29 (105.61) 

Proposed Dividend NIL NIL 

Extent of Shareholding (in %) 100% 74% 
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1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – N.A. 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or solid during the year. – N.A 
3. There is a significant influence due to percentage (%) of shareholding. 
4. Above figures are based on Standalone Financial Information of subsidiaries. 

 
Note: The Company has no Associate Companies and Joint Ventures in line with the Statutory Provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore Part B relating to Associates and Joint Ventures is not applicable. 

For and on behalf of CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 

 
SD/- SD/- 

SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI 
MANAGING DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00966068  DIN: 07999868 
 
Place: Telangana 
Date: 23/08/2025 
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ANNEXURE – VI 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

 
[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 

8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of Contracts / Arrangements entered into by the Company with the 
Related Parties referred to in Sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain Arm's Length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

 
A.DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS: 
There are no such transactions during the year (F.Y. 2024-25) which are not at arm's length basis. 
 
B. A.DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS: 

 

Name (s) of the Related 

Party and nature of 

Relationship 

Sumathi 

Corporate 

Services 

Private 

Limited 

(Subsidiary) 

Sumathi 

Agro 

Industries 

(Entity in 

which 

common 

director) 

Sarfraz 

Mulla 

(Complia 

nce 

Officer) 

Laxminaray 

an Punna 

(Chief 

Financial 

Officer) 

Sukumar 

Reddy 

(Managing 

Director) 

Sampath Rao 

Nemmani 

(Director) 

Nature of  Loan 

Given 

 Loan 

Receive 

d Back 

  Sale of 

goods 

or 

Services 

  Salary   Salary   Share 

Purchase 

Considerati 

on 

  Salary 

contract/arrangement/trans    

actions    

Duration of Transaction Transaction 01/04/202 01/04/2024 Transactional 01/04/2024 

contract/arrangements/tran al al 4 To To (Consideration To 

sactions   31/03/202 31/03/2025 Payable) 31/03/2025 

   5    

Salient Terms of 
contract/arrangements/tra 
nsactions including the 
value if any 

Rs. 

99,28,000/- 

Rs. 

Rs. 

1,54,78,00 

0/- 

Rs. 

1,47,000/ 

- 

Rs. 

4,44,000/- 

Rs. 

12,00,5000/- 

Rs. 2,50,000/- 

 1,66,65,000/-      

Date(s) of approval by the 30/05/202 30/05/20 30/05/20 30/05/2024 30/05/2024 30/05/2024 

Board 4 24 24    

Amount paid as Advances, if 

any 

- - - - - - 

 
For and on behalf of CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED  

(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 
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SD/- SD/- 
SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI 

MANAGING DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00966068  DIN: 07999868 

Place: Telangana  
Date: 23/08/2025 
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

 
A. COMPANY’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY :- 

Corporate Governance is essentially the management of the Company’s activities in 
accordance with policies that are value-accretive for all stakeholders. Corporate Governance 
at “CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED” is a journey to constantly achieve targets, 
value creations at the same time following best emerging practices, standards and policies. 
The Management strongly believes in fostering a governance philosophy that is committed to 
maintaining accountability, transparency and responsibility, which are integral to the 
Company’s day-to-day operations. Your Company strives to ensure that best corporate 
governance practices are identified, adopted and consistently followed. 

 
In order to keep up the highest level of standards regarding Corporate Governance and 
Disclosures, the Management has constituted several committees that oversee various 
aspects of the Company’s administration. In accordance with the Companies Act 2013 and the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’) the Committees inspect and resolve issues that may arise 
from time to time within the Company. 

 
A well-informed Board is an important facet of responsible behaviour. On a regular basis, the 
Board members of the Company are apprised of all the vital issues that it comes across and 
the remedial actions taken in this regard. Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is 
to ensure that the: 

(i) Board and Top Management of the Company are fully apprised of the Company’s affairs 
which are aimed at assisting them in the efficient conduct of the Company so as to meet 
Company’s obligation to the Shareholders. 

(ii) Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities towards Shareholders and Creditors so as 
to ensure high accountability. 

(iii) To protect and enhance Shareholders’ value. 
(iv) Disclosures of every information to present and potential Investors are maximized. 
(v) Decision making process in the Company is transparent and is backed by documentary 

evidence. 
 

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- 
 

(i) Composition & Category of Board of Directors: 

Page 68 of 163



 

 

 
The Board of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors in conformity with the provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”). 
 
As on 31st March, 2025, the Board of the Company comprised of 4 (Four) Directors; which 
includes 2 (Two) Executive Directors and 2 (Two) Non-Executive Directors, All Non-Executive 
Directors are Independent Directors, who have considerable experience in their respective 
fields. Board is represented by 50 % of the Executive Directors and 50 % by Non-Executive 
Directors. Thus, the Board represents a balanced mix of entrepreneurs and professionals, who 
bring the benefits of their knowledge and expertise and enable the Board to discharge its 
responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. 

 
Changes in Board of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the 
financial year 2024-25 
 
During the year under review, there were following changes in the Key Managerial Personnel 
of the company. 

 
Ms. Hema Advani, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer (Key Managerial Personnel) of 
the Company has tendered her resignation from the position of Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company vide her letter dated 24th 
June, 2024. 

 
Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani, Independent Director of the Company has tendered her resignation 
from the position of Directorship vide her letter dated 28th January, 2025. 

 
Mr. Sarfraz Taherbhai Mulla was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
(Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company at the board meeting held on 26th July, 2024. 
 
Further, after the closure of the financial year but before the date of the board report, there 
were following changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the company. 

 
Ms. Janki Vaibhavkumar Shah and Mr. Mukesh Trivedi was appointed as an Additional 
Independent Director at the board meeting held on 22nd April, 2025 and 16th June, 2025 
respectively and both director’s appointment was regularized by passing special resolution 
through postal ballot on 19th July, 2025. 

 
Mr. Naresh Reddy Vattipally was appointed as an additional director (Executive & 
Professional) at the board meeting held on 03rd July, 2025. 

 
Ms. Nidhi Jain has tendered her resignation from the office of directorship vide letter dated 
02nd April, 2025. 

 
The Current strength of Board includes one Woman Director as required under applicable 
provisions under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
(ii) Skills/Expertise/Competencies of Board of Directors: 
 
The Members of the Board are committed to ensuring that the Board is in compliance with 
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the highest standards of Corporate Governance. The table below summarize the key skills, 
expertise, competencies and attributes which are taken into consideration by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee while recommending appointment of Directors on the Board. 
 

Sr
. 
N
o. 

Name Knowl
edge 
of 
Compa
ny’s 
busine
ss 

Sales 
& 
Marke
ting 
skills 

Busine
ss 
strateg
y & 
Analyt
ics, 
Critica
l & 
Innova
tive 
thinki
ng 

Corporat
e 
Manage
ment and 
Corporat
e 
Governa
nce  

Financ
ial and 
Manag
ement 
skills 
admin
istrati
on 

Leader
ship 
and 
decisi
on 
makin
g 

Beha
viora
l 
skills 

Risk 
identific
ation 

1. Sukumar 
Reddy 
Garlapati 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

2. Sampath 
Rao 
Nemmani 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

3. Pratik 
Surendera
kumar 
Shah 

√ √  √ √ √ √  

4. Nidhi Jain √ √  √ √ √ √  
 
(iii) Board Meeting Procedures and flow of information: 

The Agenda papers and notes to agenda for the meetings of the Board and its Committees are 
circulated well in advance to the Directors to ensure enough time is given to Director to 
prepare for the respective meetings, as and when required. 

The Company Secretary had attended all the meetings of the Board and its Committees held 
during the FY 2024-25 and is, inter alia, responsible for recording the minutes of such 
meetings. The draft minutes of the Board and its Committees were sent to the members for 
their comments in accordance with the Secretarial Standards and then, the minutes are 
entered in the Minutes book within 30 days (Thirty days) of the conclusion of the meetings, 
subsequent to incorporation of the comments, if any, received from the Directors. 

In compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Board represents a desired 
mix of experience, knowledge and gender. The Board of the Company has an optimum 
combination of Executive, Non- Executive and Independent Directors with atleast one woman 
director and more than fifty percent of the Board of Directors comprises non-executive 
directors with the strength of fifty percent independent directors. 

 
The MD is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company, subject to the 
supervision, direction and control of the Board. The MD are ably assisted by the Management 

Page 70 of 163



 

 

Committee for implementing the decisions and strategic policies of the Board for effective 
execution. 
 
The Company adheres to the provisions of the Act read with the Rules issued thereunder, 
Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and SEBI Listing Regulations 
with respect to convening and holding the meetings of the Board and its Committees thereof. 
 
The required information as enumerated in Part A of Schedule II to SEBI Listing Regulations 
is made available to the Board for discussions and consideration at every Board Meeting. 

 
 

(iv) Disclosure pertaining to Directorships in Listed Companies as on 31st March, 
2025: 

Name(s) of the Listed Entities where the Directors of the Company are Directors and category 
of Directorship as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations as on 31st March, 2025 are as 
under: 

 
Name of Director DIN Category & Nature 

of Directorship 
Name of the Listed 
Companies in 
which the Director 
of the Company is a 
Director 

Sukumar Reddy 
Garlapati 

00966068 Promoter, Chairman 
& Managing Director 

CASPIAN 
CORPORATE 
SERVICES LIMITED 

Sampath Rao 
Nemmani 

07999868 Director CASPIAN 
CORPORATE 
SERVICES LIMITED 

Pratik 
Surendrakumar Shah 

08233777 Independent 
Director 

CASPIAN 
CORPORATE 
SERVICES LIMITED 

Nidhi Jain 09184058 Independent 
Director 

GOBLIN INDIA 
LIMITED 
 

Independent 
Director 

CASPIAN 
CORPORATE 
SERVICES LIMITED 

Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani (DIN: 09720365) had resigned from the post of Independent director 
vide letter dated 28th January, 2025. 

Notes: 

 As required under the Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the Directors 
hold Directorship in more than 7 (seven) listed companies and as per declaration received 
from the Directors. Further, the Managing Director & CEO/Whole-time Director of the 
Company does not serve as an Independent Director in more than 3 (three) listed 
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Companies. 

 The Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing Regulations further provides for inclusion of only 
equity listed entities reckoning the directorship in listed entity. 

 None of the Directors were members in more than 10 (ten) committees, nor a chairperson 
in more than 5 (five) committees across all companies in which he / she was a director, 
including those held in CCSL as required under Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations 

 For the purpose of considering the limit of the committees on which a director can serve, 
all public limited companies, whether listed or not, have been included and all other 
companies including private limited companies, foreign companies, high value debt listed 
entities and companies under Section 8 of the Act, have been excluded. Only Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are considered for the purpose of 
reckoning committee positions. 

 
(v) Key information pertaining to Directors as on 31st March, 2025: 

 
Name of Director Inter-se relationship No. of Shares held in 

Caspian Corporate 
Services Limited 

Sukumar Reddy Garlapati Brother of Director 1,91,15,106 
Sampath Rao Nemmani Brother of KMP 10,76,181 
Pratik Surendrakumar 
Shah 

- - 

Nidhi Jain - - 

Notes:  

Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani (DIN: 09720365) had resigned from the post of Independent 
director vide letter dated 28th January, 2025. 

 
(vi) The composition of the Board and the number of directorships and Committee 

positions held by the Directors as on 31st March, 2025, are as under: 
 
 

Name of the 
Director 

Date of 
Appointment 

No. of 
Directorships 
in Indian 
Listed 
Companies 
(Including 
CCSL) 

No. of 
Chairmanship/Membership in 
India Public Companies 
(Including CCSL) Refer 
Regulation 26(1) of SEBI 
Listing Regulations 
Chairmanship Membership 

SUKUMAR REDDY 
GARLAPATI 

06/09/2021 1 1 1 

SAMPATH RAO 
NEMMANI 

06/09/2021 1 0 0 

Page 72 of 163



 

 

PRATIK 
SURENDRAKUMAR 
SHAH 

30/10/2021 1 1 1 

NIDHI JAIN 30/10/2021 2 2 2 

Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani (DIN: 09720365) had resigned from the post of Independent 
director vide letter dated 28th January, 2025. 

Notes:  

1) In accordance with the Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (as amended from time to time) 
Membership(s)/Chairpersonship(s) of only Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committees in all public limited companies have been considered. 

2) Public Companies include private companies which are subsidiaries of public company. 

3) Other directorships do not include directorships of Private Limited Companies, Foreign 
Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the Act. 

 
(vii) The details of attendance at Board Meetings held during the FY 2024-25 and at 

the previous Annual General Meeting and Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the 
Company are detailed below: 

 
During the FY 2024-25, the Board of Directors of your Company met 7 (Seven) times on 30th 
May, 2024, 03rd June, 2024, 12th August, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 04th September, 2024, 14th 
November, 2024, and 14th February, 2025 

  
Name of 
Director 

Date of Board Meeting & Attendance Total No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
attended 

30th 
May, 
2024 

03rd 
July, 
2024 

12th 
August
, 2024 

13th 
August
, 2024 

04th 
Septemb
er, 2024 

14th 
Novembe
r, 2024  

14th 
February, 
2025 

Sukumar 
Reddy 
Garlapati
  

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 07 

Sampath Rao 
Nemmani 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 07 

Pratik 
Surendraku
mar Shah 

√   √  √ √ 04 

Nidhi Jain √   √  √ √ 04 
Hetal Harshal 
Somani 

√   √  √ N.A. 03 

 
(viii) Independent Directors 

Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
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the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of Act along with rules framed 
thereunder. 

The Independent Directors had submitted declaration(s) that they meet the criteria of 
Independence laid down under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Independent 
Directors had also confirmed that they have registered themselves in the databank of persons 
offering to become Independent Directors. 

Independent Directors of the Company who resigns before the expiry of his/her tenure shall 
required to give detailed reasons for the resignation along with a confirmation that there are 
no other material reasons other than those provided. 

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. The Company 
has on its Board, eminent Independent Directors who have brought in independent 
judgement to Board’s deliberations including issues of strategy, risk management and overall 
governance. They have played a pivotal role in safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders. 
The terms and conditions for appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the 
website of the Company. 

 
(ix) Declaration by Independent Directors 
 
Every Independent Director, at the First meeting of the Board in which he participates as a 
Director and thereafter at the First meeting of the Board in every Financial Year, gives a 
declaration that he/she meets the criteria of Independence as provided under Section 149(6) 
of the Act and applicable rules made thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) & 25(8) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. The Company has received necessary declarations from each 
Independent Director that he/she meets the criteria of Independence in terms of the said 
provisions. 
 
Further in compliance with Rule 6(1) and Rule 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they 
have applied online for inclusion of their name in the data bank of Independent Directors and 
have filed an application for renewal, if applicable. 
Based on the disclosures received from all the Independent Directors and also in the opinion 
of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions as specified in the Act and the 
SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the Management of the Company. 

 
(x)  Familiarization Programmes for Independent Directors: 
 
Pursuant to the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors specified under the Act and SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company has framed a familiarization programme for all its 
Independent Directors. The Company has formulated a policy to familiarize the Independent 
Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc., through 
various programmes. 
 
The details of such familiarization programmes are disclosed on the website of the Company 
at www.caspianservices.in. 
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(xi) Separate Meeting for Independent Directors 
 
 
In terms of the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent 
Directors of the Company shall meet at least once in a financial year, without the presence of 
Executive and Non-Independent Directors and members of management. 
 
The Independent Directors met on 08th February, 2025 inter-alia discussed and reviewed 
the: 
 
(i) Performance of Chairman, Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
(ii) Performance of the Chairman of the Company taking, into account views of 

Executive/Non-Executive Directors and 
(iii) Quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s 

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties. 

 
The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, 
prepared by the Company 
 
 
3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
 
The Board has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference in line with 
the provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations the Act; framed thereunder and to focus on specific 
areas and to make informed  decisions. 
 
The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and are 
being set out to deal with specific areas / activities which concern the Company and need a 
closer review. 
 
The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning and co-opting the members of the 
Committees. The meetings of the Board Committees are convened by the Chairman of the 
respective Committee. 
 
The Board periodically reviews the composition and terms of reference of its Committees in 
order to comply with any amendments/modifications to the provisions relating to 
composition of Committees. The various Committees of the Board are as under: 
 
A.  Audit Committee 
B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

 
 
 

A. Audit Committee:  
In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company has duly constituted its Audit Committee. 
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Committee is required to assist the Board in fulfilling its overall responsibilities of monitoring 
financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes 
for internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory and 
internal audit activities. The Committee carries out its functions as per the powers and roles 
given under Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Part C of Schedule II and Act. 
 
a. Composition of Audit Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at 

Meetings: 
 

As on 31st March, 2025, there were 3 (three) members of Audit Committee, out of which 2 
(two) members were Independent Directors. A detailed charter of the Audit committee is also 
available on the website of the company at www.caspianservices.in. 
 
During the FY 2024-25, 6 (Six) meetings of the Audit Committee were held i.e. 30th May, 2024, 
03rd July, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 04th September, 2024, 14th November, 2024 and 14th 
February, 2025. The intervening gap between two meetings was less than 120 (one hundred 
and twenty days). Necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 
 
The composition of the Audit Committee as at 31st March, 2025 and details of the attendance 
of the members in the meetings held during the FY 2024-25 are as follows: 
 

Name of the 
Committee 
Member 

Designation in 
Committee 

Category of 
Director 

No. of meetings during the FY 
2024-25 
Held Attended 

Pratik 
Surendrakumar 
Shah 

Chairperson Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director  

6 6 

Nidhi Jain Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director  

6 6 

Sukumar Reddy 
Garlapati 

Member Executive 
Director 

6 6 

 
The Chief Financial Officer is invitee to the meetings of the Committee. All the members of the 
Audit Committee are financially literate and Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar Shah and Ms. Nidhi 
Jain possess financial/accounting management expertise. 
 
The minutes of the meetings of the Committee are placed before and noted by the Board. 
During the year, all recommendations of the Committee of the Board which were mandatorily 
required were accepted by the Board. 
 
The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company act as the Secretary to the 
Committee. 
 
Mr. Pratik Surendrakumar Shah, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the 13th 
AGM of the Company held on 30th September, 2024. 
 
b. Power of Committee: 
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The Audit Committee shall have the following powers includes; 
 
1) May call for comments of auditors about internal control system, scope of audit, including 

observations of auditors and May discuss any related issues with internal and statutory 
auditors and management of the Company and to review of financial statement before 
their submission to the Board. 
 

2) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference. 
 

3) To seek information from any employee 
 

4) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice from external sources 
 

5) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 
 

6) Any other power as may be delegated to the 
  

7) Committee by way of operation of law. 
 

 
c. Brief Description of Terms of reference & Role of Audit Committee 

 
1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 
 

2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of  Auditors 
of the Company; 
 

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors; 

 
4)  Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial Statements and auditor’s report 

thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 
 

• Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 
included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013; 

 
• Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
 
• Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of  judgment by 

management; 
 
• Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
 
• Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial  statements; 
 
• Disclosure of any related party transactions; 
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• Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report; 
 

5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to 
the Board for approval; 
 

6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds 
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice 
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds 
of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, 
and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; 
 

7) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process; 
 

8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related 
parties 
 

9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
 

10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 
 

11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 

12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 
adequacy of the internal control systems; 
 

13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 
 

14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
 

15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 
 

16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
 

17) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors; 
 

18) To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
 

19) Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) after assessing the qualifications, 
experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 
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20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit 

committee; 
 

21) To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding 
company in the subsidiary exceeding Rs. 100 Crs or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, 
whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the 
date of coming into force of this provision; 
 

22) To consider and comment on rationale, cost benefits and impact of schemes involving 
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders; 
 

23) Such other terms as may be prescribed under the Act or the Listing Regulations. 
 

d. Review of Information by the Audit Committee: 
 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 
 
1) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

 
2) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory 

auditors; 
 

3) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
 
4) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor 

shall be subject to review by the audit committee. 
 
5) Statement of deviations: 
 

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 
 

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

 
 

 
B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE; 

 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company is having duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. 

 
a. Composition of Committee, Meetings and Attendance of each member at 

Nomination & Remuneration Meetings: 
 
As on 31st March, 2025, there were 3 (three) members of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, out of which 2 (two) members were Independent Directors. A detailed charter of 
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the Nomination and Remuneration committee is also available on the website of the company 
at www.caspianservices.in., 

 
During the FY 2024-25, 5 (Five) meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee were 
held i.e. 30th May, 2024, 26th July, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 14th November, 2024 and 14th 
February, 2025.  
 
Necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 
 

Name of the 
Committee 
Member 

Designation in 
Committee 

Category of 
Director 

No. of meetings during the FY 
2024-25 
Held Attended 

Nidhi Jain Chairperson Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director  

5 5 

Pratik 
Surendrakumar 
Shah 

Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director  

5 5 

Sukumar Reddy 
Garlapati 

Member Executive 
Director 

5 5 

 
The minutes of NRC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings. 
 
Nidhi Jain, Chairperson of the NRC was present at the 13th AGM of the Company held on 30th 
September, 2024 to answer the shareholder’s queries. 
 
b. Brief Description of terms of reference & role of committee: 
 
The terms of reference of NRC are specified in Para A of Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and as approved by the Board and amended from time to time, are mentioned 
hereunder: 
 
1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a Director; 
 
2. To Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 

managerial personnel and other employees; 
 

3. To evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board for every 
appointment of an Independent Director. 
 

4. To prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director 
on the basis of an evaluation. 
 

5. To use the services of an external agencies; if required, to consider candidates from a wide 
range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and to consider the time 
commitments of the candidates for the purpose of identifying suitable candidates for 
appointment as an Independent Director. 
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6. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the 
Board of Directors. 
 

7. To devise a policy on diversity of the Board of Directors. 
 

8. To Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in 
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the 
Board their appointment and removal. 
 

9. On the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors, to decide 
whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director. 
 

10. To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 
management; and 
 

11. Such other terms as may be prescribed under the Act or the Listing Regulations. 
 

c. Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of the 
performance of the Independent Directors and the same forms part of Directors’ Report. The 
said criteria provide certain parameters like; experience and expertise, independent 
judgement, ethics and values, adherence to the corporate governance norms, interpersonal 
relationships, attendance and contribution at meetings etc. Which is in compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations and guidelines. 
 
 
C. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company is having duly constituted 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. 
 
a) Composition of Committee, Meetings and Attendance of each member at Meetings: 
 
As on 31st March, 2025, there were 3 (three) members of Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee (SRC) out of which 2 (two) members were Independent Directors. A detailed 
charter of the SRC is also available on the website of the Company at 
www.caspianservices.in. 
 
During the F.Y. 2024-25, 4 (Four) meetings of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee were 
held i.e. 30th May, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 14th November, 2024 and 14th February, 2025. 
 

Name of the 
Committee 
Member 

Designation in 
Committee 

Category of 
Director 

No. of meetings during the FY 
2024-25 
Held Attended 

Nidhi Jain Chairperson Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director  

4 4 
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Pratik Surendra 
Kumar Shah 

Member Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director  

4 4 

Sukumar Reddy 
Garlapati 

Member Executive 
Director 

4 4 

 
The minutes of SRC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings. 
 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
 
Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani, Chairperson of SRC was present at the 13th AGM of the Company 
held on 30th September, 2024 to answer the shareholders’ queries. 
 
b) Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: 
 
During the Year under review, there has been change in Compliance Officer. Ms. Hema Advani 
had resigned from the post of office of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. close 
of the business hours of 24th June, 2024 and Mr. Sarfraz Taherbhai Mulla had been appointed 
as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. 26th July, 2024. 
 
c)  Terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
 
The role of Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been specified as per Regulation 20 of 
SEBI Listing Regulations read with Part D of the Schedule II thereof. The term of reference of 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, as approved by the Board and amended from time to 
time, includes the following: 
 
1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints 

related to transfer/ transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc. 
 

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of 
various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
 

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the 
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/ 
annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company. 
 

5. Such other terms as may be prescribed under the Act or the Listing Regulations. 
 

Details relating to the number of Investor Complaints received and redressed during 
the FY 2024-25 are as under: 
 

Particulars No. of Complaints 
Investor complaints pending at the 
beginning of the year 

0 

Investor complaints received during the 
year 

0 
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Investor complaints disposed off during the 
year 

0 

Investor complaints remaining unresolved 
at the end of the year 

0 

 
An update on the status of Investor complaints is quarterly reported to the Board and is also 
filed with Stock Exchanges as per SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
All complaints have been resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders. 
 
 
4. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
 
 
a. Remuneration Policy: 

 
Remuneration Policy of the Company has been designed to ensure that the level and 
composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
Directors/Employees of the quality required to run the Company successfully and 
Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
bench marks. 
 
The Company pays remuneration to Executive Directors by way of salary, perquisites based 
on recommendation of the NRC, approval of the Board and the shareholders. The commission 
payable is based on the overall performance of the Company, performance of the business / 
function as well as qualitative factors. 
 
The Independent Directors/Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of 
commission and sitting fees. The Company had paid commission and sitting fees as per the 
criteria defined by NRC of the Company to Independent Directors/Non-Executive Directors. 
 
As required by the provisions of Regulation 46 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the criteria for 
making payment to Independent Directors/Non-Executive Directors is made available on  
  . 
 
The Board has approved the Nomination and Remuneration Policy which is periodically 
reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Policy is 
available on the website of the Company viz.    . 
 
b. Details of remuneration paid/payable to the Directors: 

 
The Details of remuneration paid/payable to the Executive Directors for FY 2024-25 are given 
below: 
 
                   (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Name of the Directors Remuneration 
Sukumar Reddy Garlapati NIL 
Sampath Rao Nemmani 2.5/- 
Total 2.5/- 
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The Details of remuneration paid/payables to the Non-Executive Directors for F.Y. 2024-25 
are given below: 
 
           (Rs. In Lakhs) 
 
Name of the Directors Sitting Fees 
Hetal Harshal Somani 1.00/- 
Nidhi Jain 1.00/- 
Pratik Surendrakumar Shah  1.00/- 
Total 3.00/- 

 
Ms. Hetal Harshal Somani had tendered her resignation dated 28th January, 2025. 
 
Notes: 
 
i. No commission has been paid to Executive and Non-Executive Directors (including 

Independent Directors) during the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 

ii. There is no provision for payment of severance fees and no performance linked 
incentives are paid to any Director. 

 
iii. The tenure of office of the Managing Director / Executive Director is for five years 

from their respective dates of appointments. 
 

iv. The notice period of Managing Director / Executive Director is governed by service 
rules of the Company. 

 
v. None of the Directors hold any stock options and convertible instruments in the 

Company; 
 

vi. The Non-Executive Directors on the Company’s Board, apart from receiving sitting 
fees do not have any other pecuniary relationship or transactions vis-à-vis the 
Company. The details of remuneration paid to Directors have also been disclosed 
under the heading ‘Related Party Disclosures’ of Notes to Financial Statement. 

 
vii. Notice period for termination of appointment of Chief Executive Officer & Managing 

Director and other Whole-time Directors as per their appointment. 
 

viii. The Company is not executing Service Contracts with Managerial Personnel. 
 

 
The other details about Independent Directors, Remuneration Policy, Performance Evaluation 
Criteria and Remuneration of Directors have also been provided in the Board’s Report 
forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
The Board, based on the performance of the Company and on the recommendation of NRC, 
has decided the payment of Commission to the Non-Executive Directors. 
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5. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 
As on 31st March, 2025, the Company has a wholly owned subsidiary company namely 
Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited. Moreover, the company has also a First Level 
Step down subsidiary company namely Sumathi Bright Shine Airport Services Private 
Limited. 
 
Out of the said subsidiaries Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited is covered under the 
criteria of material non-listed Subsidiary Company as defined under Regulation 16(1)(c) of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 
 
Currently, The company has not nominated any Independent Director of the Company on the 
Board of material subsidiary i.e. Sumathi Corporate Services Limited during the F.Y. 2024-25.  
 
The Subsidiary of the Company function with an adequately empowered Board of Directors 
and sufficient resources. 
 
For more effective governance, the Company monitors performance of Subsidiary Companies, 
interalia, by following means: 
 
a) Financial Statements, in Particulars in particular investments made by unlisted Subsidiary 

Companies, are reviewed quarterly by the Company’s Audit Committee. 
 

b) Minutes of unlisted Material Subsidiary Companies are placed before the Board of the 
Company regularly. 
 

c) A statement, wherever applicable, of all significant transactions and arrangements 
entered into by the Company’s subsidiaries is presented to the Board of the Company at 
its meetings. 
 

The risk factors and project reports of the Subsidiary Companies are also reviewed by the 
Audit Committee of the Company. 
 
The Company has formulated policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries in line with the 
requirements of the Listing Regulations, The Policy aims to set out the principles for 
determining a material subsidiary. The said policy is available on the website of the Company 
at     /. 
 
6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 
a. Annual General Meeting 
 
The date, time and venue of Annual General Meetings (AGMs) held during the preceding 3 
(three) years and special resolutions passed there at are as follows: 
 

AGM/EG
M 

Day & Date Time Venue/Mode No. of 
Special 
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Resolution
s Passed 

13th AGM Monday, 30th 
September, 2024 

03:30 
P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) and Other Audio-
Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

01 

12th AGM Thursday, 28th 
September, 2023 

03:30 
P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) and Other Audio-
Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

NIL 

11th AGM Friday, 23rd 
September, 2022 

03:30 
P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) and Other Audio-
Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

04 

 
In compliance with Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations and provisions of Sections 108 
of the Act read with Rule 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Company had offered e-voting facility to all its Members to exercise their 
right to vote. For this purpose, the Company had availed the services of Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited. 
 
b. Special Resolution(s) passed through Postal Ballot 

 
During the FY 2024-25, the Company has not sought or passed any resolution through Postal 
Ballot. 
 
c. Special Resolutions proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot. 

 
No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot in ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 
 
d. Procedure for Postal Ballot 
 
Prescribed procedure for postal ballot as per the provisions contained in this behalf in the Act, 
read with rules made thereunder as amended from time to time, shall be complied with, 
whenever necessary. 
 
e. Extra-Ordinary General Meetings: 
During the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, the Company has held one Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the members of the Company on 29th July, 2024. 
 
 
7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 
 

a) Financial Results: 
 

Quarterly Financial Results are announced within 45 (forty-five) days from the end of the 
Quarter and Annual Audited Results are announced within 60 (sixty) days from the end of 
the Financial Year ,as per Regulations 33 and 52 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and are 
published in the newspapers in accordance with Regulation 47 of the Listing Regulations. 
Quarterly financial results are announced to Stock Exchanges within 30 (thirty) minutes 
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from the closure of the Board meeting at which these are considered and approved.  
 
Further, the Company is also making arrangements to publish the results in English and 
Telangana (vernacular) newspapers. The Company is also taking adequate steps to host 
the quarterly results on the Company’s website immediately after dissemination of 
information to the stock exchanges. 
 
 

b) Email Communications 
 

As permitted under Section 20 and 136 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 during the year under review, the Company sent various communications, such as 
notice calling the general meeting / Postal Ballot Notice, audited financial statements 
including Board’s Report, etc. in electronic form at the email IDs provided by the Members 
and made available by them to the Company through the depository participants. 
 
 

c) Newspapers 
 
Financial Results of the Company are normally published in Financial Express – English & 
Mana Telangana – Telugu newspaper. 
 

d) Website 
 

The financial results are also displayed on the Company’s website viz. 
www.caspianservices.in. The Company also keeps on updating its website with other 
relevant information, as per statutory requirements. 

 
e) Official news releases, Earnings Calls and Presentations to Analysis: 

 
Not Applicable 
 
 

f) Exclusive Email ID 
 

For investors The Company has csicaldept@gmail.com as the designated email ID 
exclusively for Investors / Members servicing. 
 

8. General Shareholders Information 
 

a. General Information 
 

Corporate 
Identification No. 

L74110TG2011PLC162524 

Registered office 
Address 

F - BLOCK, 105, FIRST FLOOR, SURYA TOWERS, SARDAR 
PATEL ROAD, SECUNDERABAD, HYDERABAD, Telangana, 
India, 500003 

Annual General 
Meeting 

Date: 30th September, 2024 
Time: 03:30 PM 
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Venue: Through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual 
Means 

Financial Year 01st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 
Book Closure Date Book Closure, if any, shall be specified in the AGM Notice 
Dividend 5% Final Dividend has been recommended by the Board 
Compliance Officer Mr. Sarfraz Taherbhai Mulla 
Website Address https://www.caspianservices.in/ 
Listing of Equity 
Shares on Stock 
Exchange in India at  

BSE Limited (BSE) 

Stock Code BSE- 534732 
ISIN for Equity Shares INE176N01021 
Listing Fees Requisite fees paid to BSE for the FY 2024-25 and Financial 

Year 2025-26 
Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA) 

PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED 
Address: 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J. R. Boricha Marg, 
Near Lodha Excelus, Lower Parel East, Mumbai – 400 011 
Phone No. : 022-2301 6761 / 2301 2518  
Fax: 022-2301 2517 
Website: www.purvashare.com 
E-mail: support@purvashare.com 

 
 

b. Stock Market Data 
 

The details of the monthly high and low prices of the Equity Shares of the Company 
and its comparison to board based indices BSE Sensex for period 1st April, 2024 to 
31st March, 2025 are as follows: 
 

Month Share Price on BSE BSE-Sensex 
High Low Volume 

(No. of 
shares) 

High  Low 

April, 2024 70.00  53.25 12,73,778 75,124.28 71,816.46 
May, 2024 68.36  48.27 8,75,980 76,009.68 71,866.01 
June, 2024 71.30 59.00 14,27,589 79,671.58 70,234.43 
July, 2024 74.54 60.30 44,41,448 81,908.43 78,971.79 
August, 
20024 

73.98 20.50 23,49,152 82,637.03 78,295.86 

September, 
2024 

21.72 15.51 2,97,90,113 85,978.25 80,895.05 

October, 
2024 

18.18 10.51 88,59,000 84,648.40 79,137.98 

November, 
2024 

12.70 9.65 23,08,870 80,569.73 76,802.73 

December, 
2024 

12.32 9.80  10,46,242 82,317.74 77,560.79 

January, 10.55 8.54  13,01,118 80,072.99 75,267.59 
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2025 
February, 
2025 

10.20  7.21  12,62,046
  

78,735.41 73,141.27 

March, 2025 8.34 5.56  21,34,502 78,741.69 72,633.54 
 
 

c. Financial Calendar for FY 2025-26 
 

Period Approval of Quarterly 
Results 

Quarter ending 30th June, 2025 On or before 14th August, 2025 
Quarter and half year ending 30th September, 2025 On or before 14th November, 

2025 
Quarter ending 31st December, 2025 On or before 14th February, 

2026 
The year ending 31st March, 2025 On or before 30th May, 2026 

 
The trading window closure for the financial results shall be from the first day from the 
closure of quarter till the completion of 48 (forty eight) hours after the financial results 
becomes generally available. 
 

d.  Distribution of shareholding of Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2025 
 

i. On the basis of Nominal value of each Share held 
 

Range of No. of 
Equity Shares 

Number of shareholders Equity Shares held in each 
category 

Holders % of Total 
Shareholders 

Total Shares % of Total 
shares held 

Upto     -    5,000 21960 96.93      10251359.0        8.10       
50001   -    10,000 356        1.57       2547841.0         2.01       
10,001  -    20,000 175 0.77       2495559.0         1.97       
20,001  -    30,000 49         0.22       1199822.0         0.95       
30,001  -    40,000 16         0.07       561037.0          0.44       
40,001  -    50,000 13         0.06       588972.0          0.47       
50,001  -  
1,00,000 

41         0.18       2984305.0         2.36       

10,00,001 & 
Above 

46         0.20       105971105.0       83.71      

Total 22656      100.00     126600000.0       100.00     
 
ii. On the basis of Category 

 
Category Total No. of Shares held Total 

Shares 
% of 
holding De-mated 

Shares 
Physical 
Shares 

Resident Individuals 33922292       33922292      26.79 
Corporate Promoter 64705227  64705227 51.11 
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under Same 
Management 
Unclaimed or 
Suspense or Escrow 
Account 

9930 9930 19860 0.02 

LLP 300186  300186 0.24 
Bodies Corporate 610417  610417 0.48 
Clearing Members 5525  5525 0.00 
Promoter                       25076676       25076676      19.81 
N.R.I. (Non-Repat) 431153         431153        0.34 
N.R.I. (Repat) 410361         410361        0.32 
Hindu Undivided 
Family 

1118303        1118303       0.88 

Total 126590070     9930 126600000     100.00 
 

 
iii. Top Ten Equity Members of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of the member No. of equity 
shares held 

% of 
shareholding 

1. Sumathi Infratech Private Limited 64705227      51.11 
2. Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi 19115106      15.10 
3. Satyanarayana Reddy Garlapati   5961570       4.71 
4. Sanskriti Yadav 1500000       1.18 
5. Venkat Sathya Kanesh Goli 1473915       1.16 
6. Goli Manaswini Reddy 1308101       1.03 
7. Sampath Rao Nemmani 1076181       0.85 
8. Neelima Nadimpalli 900000        0.71 
9. Nevuru Dharmendar Reddy 760008        0.60 
10. Cheguri Sai Prasad 602203        0.48 

 
 
e. Disclosure Pertaining to Share transfer system: 

 
In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities can be 
transferred only in dematerialization form w.e.f. April 1, 2019, except in case of request 
received for transmission or transposition of securities. In order to expedite the process, the 
powers are delegated by the Board of Directors to the authority to approve the share transfer/ 
transmission of shares as and when require. The share transfer process is reviewed and noted 
by the Board/ Committee time to time. 
 
f. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity of shares: 

 
The Equity Shares of the Company are tradable in compulsory dematerialized segment of the 
Stock Exchanges and are available in depository system of National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The demat security 
(ISIN) code for the equity shares is INE176N01021.  
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During the Financial year, no shares were dematerialized.  
 
As on 31st March, 2025, 12,65,90,070 Equity Shares were held in the dematerialized form. 
Approximately 99.99% of the equity shares have been dematerialized.  
 
The shares are actively traded on BSE Limited.  
 
In accordance with the proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the Listing Regulations effective from 
1st April, 2019, transfers of securities of the Company shall not be processed unless the 
securities are held in the dematerialized form with a Depository. However, investors are not 
barred from holding shares in physical form. Further, pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2022 dated 24th January, 2022, 
transmission or transposition of securities held in physical or dematerialized form shall be 
effected only in dematerialized form. In view of free transferability of shares and better 
investor servicing, shareholders holding equity shares in physical form are urged to have their 
shares dematerialized. 
 

Electronic/Physical No. of Shares  Percentage (%) 
NSDL 99712242 78.76 
CDSL 26877828 21.23 
Physical 9930 0.01 
Total 12,66,00,000 100.00  

 
 
g. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments conversion 

date and likely impact on equity: 
 

The Company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Any other Convertible 
Instruments as on 31st March, 2025. 
 
h. Prevention of Insider Trading 

 
The Company has formulated a Code of Fair Disclosure (Including Determination of 
Legitimate Purpose), Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and 
Reporting of Trading by Designated Person(s) (‘the Code’) in accordance with provisions of 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended, with a view to regulate 
trading in securities by the Directors and Designated Persons as identified therein. 
 
The Code prescribes for the procedures and compliances applicable for the preservation of 
unpublished price sensitive information under the aforesaid SEBI Regulations. Company 
Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer to ensure compliance with the requisite approvals 
on pre-clearance of trade, monitoring of trades and implementation of the Code under the 
overall supervision of the Board. 
 
 
i. Address for correspondence: 
 
The shareholders may address their communications / suggestions / grievances / queries to: 
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Caspian Corporate Services Limited M/s. Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 
Mr. Sarfraz Taherbhai Mulla  9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, (East) Mumbai, 
Company Secretary                                            Maharashtra, – 400011 India 
and Compliance Officer                                     Tel. No. – 022 2301 2518/2301  6761 

 F – Block, 105, First Floor, Surya Towers    E-mail: support@purvashare.com   
 Sardar Patel Road, Secunderabad,                 Website: www.purvashare.com   
 Hyderabad, Telangana – 500003  
 Tel. +91 40 23410031  
 E-mail: cs@caspianservices.in,  

 csicaldept@gmail.com 
 
 

9. Other Disclosures: 
 

a. Related Party Transactions: 
 

All Related Party Transactions as defined under section 2(76) of the Act and read with 
Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations entered during the FY 2024-25 were on an arm’s 
length basis and in the ordinary course of business and do not attract the provisions of section 
188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions are disclosed in financial section of 
this Annual Report. 
 
During the FY 2024-25, there were no materially significant related party transactions made 
by the Company which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 
 
The Company has developed a Related Party Transaction Policy which is uploaded on the 
website of the Company athttps://www.caspianservices.in/. 
 
b. Details of Compliance 
 
The Company has complied with the applicable requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI 
and other statutory authorities on all matters relating to capital markets. There were neither 
any instances of non-compliance by the Company nor there were any penalties or strictures 
imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange/(s) or SEBI or any statutory authorities 
relating to the above during the last three years Except as mentioned below: 
 
BSE has imposed penalty for delay in filing of Financial Result for the quarter ended 
September, 2023 and the Company has filed application waiver of penalty and BSE has not 
approved request of Waiver. 
 
Therefore, the company has received direction or order, including any ad interim or interim 
orders, or any other communication from the authority. 
 
c. Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy 

 
The principles of trust through transparency and accountability are at the core of the 
Company’s existence. To ensure strict compliance with ethical and legal standards across the 
Company a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy is in place for directors and employees to 
report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct or ethic policy. The said mechanism also provides for adequate 
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safeguards against victimization of director(s) / Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and 
also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 
 
The details of establishment of such mechanism have been disclosed in the Board’s Report. 
Further, the Policy on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of 
the Company at  .  
 
It is affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to Audit Committee during the FY 
2024-25. 
 
 
d. Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-

mandatory requirements: 
 

During the year, the Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements as 
specified under Regulation 15 of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
Specifically, the Company confirms compliance with Corporate Governance requirements 
specified in Regulations 17 to 27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable. 

 
The Company has also obtained a certificate either from the Statutory Auditor or Practicing 
Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance. The 
Company has obtained a certificate to this effect from Practicing Company Secretary and same 
is given as annexure to the Board’s Report. 
 
The Company has adopted following non mandatory requirements as prescribed under 
Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 
i. The Board 
 

The Company has an Executive Chairman and hence, the need for implementing this 
non-mandatory requirement does not arise. 

 
 ii. Shareholder Rights 
 

The Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are published 
in newspapers and posted on Company’s website at https://www.caspianservices.in. 
The same are also available on the sites of stock exchanges (BSE) where the shares of 
the Company are listed i.e. www.bseindia. Com. Hence, these are not individually sent 
to the Shareholders. 

 
 iii. Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report 

 
It is always the Company’s endeavour to present unqualified financial statements. The 
Company already has a regime of unqualified financial statements. Auditors have 
raised no qualification on the financial statements for F.Y. 2024-25. 

 
iv. Separate posts of Chairperson and Managing Director or the Chief Executive 

Officer 
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Mr. Sukumar Reddy Garlapati is the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company 
and hence no separate posts of Chairperson and Managing Director of the Company 
are there.  

 
 
 v. Reporting of Internal Auditor 
  

 The Internal Auditor of the Company is an invitee to the Audit Committee Meeting and 
regularly     
 Attends the Meetings for reporting their findings of the internal audit to the Audit 
Committee  
 Members. 

 
  

e. Disclosure of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement: 

 
During the year under review, the Company did not raise any funds through preferential 
allotment or qualified institutional placement and hence disclosure regarding of 
utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment as specified under Regulation 32 
(7A) is not required. 
 

f. Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice: 
 
The Company has obtained a Certificate as required under Part C of Schedule V of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, from M/s. Shalini 
Pandey & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, confirming that none of the directors 
of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
a Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or such authority and the same was placed before the Board of Directors 
at their meeting held on 23rd August, 2025 which forms part of this report. 
 
 

g. There was no instance during the FY 2024-25, where the Board of Directors has not 
accepted the recommendation of any committee of the Board which it was mandatorily 
required to accept. 

 
 
 
h. Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company 

 
Total fees of Rs. 3,76,000/- (Rupees Three Lakh Seventy Six Thousand Only) plus GST for 
FY 2024-25, for all services, was paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a 
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network 
entity of which the statutory auditor is a part. 

 
i. Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
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Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013  
 
The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing with complaints relating to 
sexual harassment at workplace.  

 
 
Details of complaints received and resolved are provided in below table: 

  
Sr. No. Particulars No. of 

Complaints 
1 Number of complaints as at 01st April, 2024 0 
2 Number of complaints received during the year 0 
3 Number of complaints resolved during the year 0 
4 Number of complaints pending as at 31st March, 2025 0 

 
 

j.  Loans and Advances in which Directors are interested 
 
 

The details of loans and advances provided by the Company and its subsidiaries in which 
directors are interested are mentioned in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
k. Material Subsidiaries 

 
The Company has formulated a Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries and the same is 
available on the website of the Company at     . 
 
Pursuant to regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Sumathi Corporate Services 
Private Limited is determined as the material subsidiary of the Company. 
 
Details of material subsidiary of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation 
and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries are as 
under: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Subsidiaries whose 
total income / 
Networth exceeds 
10% of the Group’s 
total income/net 
worth 

Name of 
statutory 
auditors 

Date of 
Acquisition  

Date of 
Incorporation 

Place of 
Incorporation 

1 Sumathi Corporate 
Services Private Limited 

M/s. MAAK & 
Associates 

16/03/2023 23/04/2007 India 

 
l.  Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements: 

 
The Company has complied with requirements of Corporate Governance set forth in 
Regulation 17 to 27, as well as Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulation as applicable. The Company also has complied 
with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as specified in sub paras (2) 
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to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
m. Certificate on Corporate Governance: 

 
M/s. Shalini Pandey & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, has issued a Compliance 
Certificate in accordance with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, attesting to the 
Company’s adherence to the Corporate Governance conditions. The said certificate has been 
appended as to this report. 
 
Disclosure of Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements under Regulations 
17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation (2) of regulation 46 of Listing Regulations 

 
The compliance status of corporate governance requirements as prescribed under 
regulation 17 to 27 and 46(2)(b) to (i) of the Listing Regulations is provided in below table:  

 
Regulation Details of Regulation Complied 

(Yes/No) 
17 Board of Directors Yes 
18 Audit Committee Yes 
19 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Yes 
20 Stakeholders’ / Investors’ Relationship Committee Yes 
21 Risk Management Committee Yes 
22 Vigil Mechanism Yes 
23 Related Party Transactions Yes 
24 Corporate Governance requirements with respect to 

subsidiary of the listed company 
Yes 

24A Secretarial Audit Report and Secretarial Compliance 
Report 

Yes 

25 Obligations of Independent Directors Yes 
26 Obligations with respect to Directors and Senior 

Management 
Yes 

27 Other corporate governance requirements Yes 
46(2)(b) to 
(i)  

Website Yes 

 
 
 
n. CEO / CFO Certification 

 
Pursuant to the provisions outlined in Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, both CEO 
& CFO have issued a joint certificate verifying that the financial statements are free from any 
materially false statement, and accurately reflect the Company’s current state of affairs. The 
said certificate has been appended to this report. 
 
o. Code of Conduct 

 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all employees including the members of the 
Board and Senior Management Personnel. All members of the Board and Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the said Code of Conduct for the FY 2024-25. The 
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declaration to this effect signed by Mr. SUKUMAR REDDY GARLAPATI– Chairman & Managing 
Director and the said declaration of Code of conduct is appended to this report. 
 
 
p. Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense 

Account: 
 
 

During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company had issued of 8,44,00,000 Fully paid up 
Equity Shares as Bonus Shares in ratio of 2:1 and for the said purpose company had a 
Unclaimed Securities Suspense Escrow Demat Account.  
 
That in accordance with Regulation 39(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations (erstwhile Clause 
5A of the Listing Agreement), the Company had delegated the procedural requirements to a 
share transfer agent and Share transfer agent had sent reminders to such shareholders whose 
shares were lying ‘Undelivered / Unclaimed’ with the Company. As per the requirements of 
the said Regulations, the Company through share transfer agent had completing the necessary 
formalities and credited the shares to the account of shareholders.  
 
 
 
The details of shares in Unclaimed Securities Suspense Escrow Demat Account are as 
follows: 

 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars No. of Shares 

1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at 
the beginning of the year 

0 

2 Number of Securities added in the Escrow account 
during the year 

19860 

3 Number of shareholders who approached listed 
entity for transfer of shares from suspense account 
during the year; 

0 

4 Number of shareholders to whom shares were 
transferred from suspense account during the year 

0 

5 Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at 
the end of the year 

19860 

6 That the voting rights on these shares shall remain 
frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims 
the shares. 

0 

 
 
q. Links of following key information are available on website of the Company at 

https://www.caspianservices.in/: 
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Particulars 
Basic Information 
Composition and profile of the Board of Directors 
Detail of Committees and its Charters 
Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors 
Code of conduct for Non-Executive Directors 
Quarterly Shareholding Pattern 
Quarterly Corporate Governance Report 
General Meeting 
Communication to Shareholders 
Sustainability Initiatives including CSR Projects 
Financial Results, Investors Presentations, Press Releases, Earnings Call Transcripts & 
Recordings 
Interactive Analysis Tool - Quarterly and Annual 

 
r. Links of following corporate policies and Codes are available on the website of the 

Company at https://www.caspianservices.in/: 
 

Business Code of Conduct 
Code of Conduct of Directors & Senior Management Personnel 
Code of Conduct-Insider Trading 
Code of Practices & Procedures for Fair Disclosures 
Code for Independent Directors 
Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy 
Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors 
Familiarization programme for Independent Directors 
Dividend Distribution Policy 
Investor Grievance Redressal Policy 
Nomination & Remuneration Policy 
Policy for determination of materiality of events 
Policy on Board Diversity 
Policy on Material Subsidiary 
Policy on Preservation of Documents 
Policy on Related Party Transaction 
Risk Management Policy 
Whistle Blower Policy 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 

 
For and on behalf of CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED                                                      

(Formerly known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) 

 

SD/-                                                            

   SUKUMAR REDDYGARLAPATHI                  

MANAGING DIRECTOR                                                                

DIN:  00966068                                                                       

Place: Telangana 

Date:  23/08/2025 
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SCHEDULE - VII 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To,       
The Members of 
CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
F – Block, 105, First Floor, Surya Towers, 
Sardar Patel Road, Secunderabad, 
Hyderabad - 500003 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Caspian Corporate 
Services Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 as stipulated in the applicable 
regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 
pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges. 

 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 
examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementations thereof adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expressions of opinion on the financial statement of the Company. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the Efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
For, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES 
 
 
Sd/- 
SHALINI PANDEY  
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
Proprietor Membership NO.: F10462 
CP No.: 20576  
Date: 23/08/2025  
UDIN: F010462G001068046 
Place: Mumbai 
Peer Review Cert. No.: 5756/2024 
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CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To,       
The Members of 
CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
F – Block, 105, First Floor, Surya Towers, 
Sardar Patel Road, Secunderabad, 
Hyderabad – 500003 

 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of Caspian Corporate Services Limited having CIN L74110TG2011PLC162524 and having 
registered office at F – Block, 105, First Floor, Surya Towers, Sardar Patel Road, Secunderabad, 
Hyderabad – 500003 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for 
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C 
Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verification (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025 have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1. SUKUMAR REDDY GARLAPATI 00966068 06/09/2021 

2. SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI 07999868 06/09/2021 

3. PRATIK SURENDRAKUMAR SHAH 08233777 30/10/2021 

4. NIDHI JAIN 09184058 30/10/2021 

 
Ensuing the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conduct the affairs of the 
Company. 
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For, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES 
 

 
 
Sd/- 
     
SHALINI PANDEY 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
Proprietor 

Membership NO.: F10462 
CP No.: 20576 
Peer Review Cert. No.: 5756/2024 
UDIN: F010462G001068057 
Date: 23/08/2025 
Place: Mumbai  
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CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 

 

 
To,       
The Members of 
CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 
F – Block, 105, First Floor, Surya Towers, 
Sardar Patel Road, Secunderabad, 
Hyderabad - 500003 

 
Dear members of the Board, 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 read with Schedule II part B of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that; 

 
1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Caspian Corporate Services 
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 
a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

 
b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct. 

 
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company's internal control systems pertaining to financial 
reporting. We have not come across any deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls. 

 
4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that: 

 
a. there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
b. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and 
c. there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and there is no 
involvement of the management or employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control 
system over financial reporting. 

 
           Sd/-   
Date: 23/08/2025 LAXMI NARAYANA PUNNA 
Place: Secunderabad Chief Financial Officer 
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FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
To,       
The Members of 
SUMATHI CORPORATE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
105, F - Block, First Floor, Surya Towers, 
S P Road, Hyderabad, Secunderabad, 
Telangana 500003, India 

 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited (CIN: 
U93090TG2007PTC053727) (hereinafter called the “Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period 
covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Sumathi Corporate Services Private Limited (“the Company”) for the Financial Year 
ended on 31st March, 2025, according to the provisions of: - 

 
1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;- Not 
applicable to the Company, as it is an unlisted public company. 
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;- Not applicable 
to the Company, as company's equity shares are maintained in physical form during the audit period 
under review. 
4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 

 
a. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;; 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993. 
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; 
i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulation, 2021; 
j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

We have also examined Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except: 

 
We report that the Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted as the Company being 
deemed public Company (Pursuant to the Clause 71 of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013) requires 
minimum 3 (Three) Directors according Sub-section 1 of the Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 but 
Company has appointed only 2(two) directors during the year under review. 

 
We further report that Board of the Directors of Company has approved annual financial statements on 
30th May 2024 for financial year ended on 31st march 2024. However, Company has not filed Form MGT- 
14 pursuant to Section 117 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
We further report that Caspian Corporate Services Limited (holding Company) has given Corporate 
Guarantee on behalf of Sumathi Corporate Services Limited to State bank of India for amount 
233100000 (Rupees Twenty Three Crore Thirty One Lakhs). However, Company has not Filed 
modification of charge form CHG-1 pursuant to Section 77 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
We Further report that Company has used borrowing facility exceeding limit specified under Section 
180 of the Companies Act, 2013. However Company has not passed any Shareholders resolution for the 
same. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent with shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 

 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. 

 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report that during the period under review, the Company has passed following resolutions 
passed in the General Meeting: 

 
I. In the Annual General Meeting dated 30th September, 2024: 

 
a) adoption of audited financial statements of the company for the year ended on March 31st, 2024 

together with reports of the board of directors' and auditors' thereon 

We further report that during the period under review, the company had no significant events which had 
a bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards, etc. 

 
 

FOR, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
 
 

_______________________ 
CS SHALINI PANDEY 

C.O.P. NO. – 20576 
FCS NO. 10462 

PRC NO: 5756/2024 
 
 
 
Date: 23/08/2025 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F010462G001068079 

 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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Annexure -A' 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
To,       
The Members of 
SUMATHI CORPORATE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
105, F - Block, First Floor, Surya Towers, 
S P Road, Hyderabad, Secunderabad, 
Telangana 500003, India 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the Company. 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
test basis. 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

FOR, SHALINI PANDEY & ASSOCIATES, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
 

 

 

 

Date: 23/08/2025 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F010462G001068079 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
CS SHALINI PANDEY 

C.O.P. NO. – 20576 
FCS NO. 10462 

PRC NO:5756/2024 
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INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO	THE	MEMBERS	OF
CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	Known	as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)
Report	on	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone �inancial statements of Caspian Corporate Services 
Limited (Formerly Known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Pro�it and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that 
date, and a summary of the signi�icant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone �inancial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone �inancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the pro�it and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash �lows for the year ended on that date.

Basis	for	Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone �inancial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing speci�ied under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone �inancial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone �inancial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have ful�illed our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the �inancial 
statements.
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Key	Audit	Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, where of most signi�icance in 
our audit of the standalone �inancial statements of the current year. These matters, where addressed in 
the contacts of our audit of the statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's	Responsibility	for	the	Standalone	�inancial	statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone �inancial statement that give a true and fair view of the 
�inancial position, �inancial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash �lows 
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application.

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal �inancial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the standalone �inancial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the �inancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are responsible for 
overseeing the Company's �inancial reporting process.

Auditor's	Responsibility	for	the	Audit	of	the	Financial	Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone �inancial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in�luence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these �inancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the �inancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion' The risk ofnot detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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· O btain an understanding of internal �inancial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal �inancial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast signi�icant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor/s report to 
the related disclosures in the standalone �inancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the �inancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone �inancial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves.

Report	on	Other	Legal	and	Regulatory	Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the 
matters speci�ied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order for the company (excluding its joint operations), to 
the extent applicable.

2.  (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
  knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
  appears from our examination of those books.

c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Pro�it and Loss and standalone
  statement of change in equity and standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
  agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone �inancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
  speci�ied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken
  on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquali�ied as on 31st March, 2025 from
  being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations as on 31st March, 2025 on its �inancial position in its 
standalone �inancial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identi�ied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (“Ultimate Bene�iciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Bene�iciaries

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identi�ied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Bene�iciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bene�iciaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused them to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

(d) The �inal dividend declared and paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 
123 of companies Act, 2013.

(e) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account 
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to 
the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the �inancial year ended March 31, 2025.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters speci�ied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.
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4. As required with reference to the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), we give in the “Annexure-B” a statement on the 
matters speci�ied to the extent applicable.

For,	MAAK	and	Associates
[Firm	Registration	No.	135024W]	Chartered	Accountants

Place:	Ahmedabad																																																																																																																																	Marmik	Shah
Date:	26/05/2025																																																																																																																																	Partner
UDIN:	25133926BMJGXU4028																																																																																																									Mem.	
No:133926
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE 
INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR'S REPORT

i.  (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) According to information and explanation given to us the Company has maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) According to information and explanation given to us the Company has maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars of Property, Plant and Equipment

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of Company

(d) The company does not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
intangible assets, the clause for revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
assets) or intangible assets or both is not applicable.

(e) No any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there 
under.

ii.  (a) Since, the company is engaged in business of providing Manpower Service, hence there is no 
inventory with the company, Accordingly, the clause for physical veri�ication of inventory at reasonable 
interval by the management is not applicable.

(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of �ive crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or �inancial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets. Accordingly, point of reconciliation of books of accounts and quarterly returns or 
statements �iled with the banks is not applicable to the company.

iii.  (a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, �irms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 within applicable 
limits.
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(b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the investments made, 
guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances 
in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest;

(c) According to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature 
of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the 
repayments or receipts are regular;

(d) According to information and explanation given to us the company has given loan to the party, the 
clause for total amount overdue for more than 90 days, and reasonable steps have been taken by the 
company for recovery of the principal and interest;

(e) According to information and explanation given to us the company has not given any loan to the 
party, the clause for any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the 
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to 
the same parties, is not applicable to the company.

(f) According to information and explanation given to us the company has granted loans or advances to 
Promoters, related parties as de�ined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the nature 
of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment;

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given 
any loan to directors the requirement to complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the company

v. According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits as 
de�ined in the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 
3(v) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. The provision of Section 148 (1) is not applicable to the Company for the FY 2024-25, the 
requirement of maintaining cost records in pursuant to Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 
2014 is not applicable to the company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

(c) The Company has no disputed outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2025.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no any transactions found which 
is not recorded in the books of account, accordingly provision of tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), is not applicable to company;
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ix. (a) According to opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not applied for loan hence the clause for reporting of defaulted in the repayment of loans and 
borrowings to �inancial institutions and bank is not applicable to the company

(b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the company is not a 
declared willful defaulter by any bank or �inancial institution or other lender;

(c) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the company has not 
applied for term loans.

(d) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the company has not 
utilized fund raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures, this clause is not applicable to the company.

(f) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us the company has not raised 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies.

x. (a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully, partly, optionally convertible debentures and therefore, the reporting under this clause is 
not applicable to the company.

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
has been no fraud committed by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its of�icers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us no report 
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been �iled in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the 
year and up to the date of this report.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the company and accordingly, no 
reporting is required under this clause.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
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xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable for all transactions 
with related parties and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone �inancial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has an 
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit and there are no 
adverse comments made by the Internal Auditors.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and 
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Therefore, the reporting under clause (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certi�icate of 
Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as de�ined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India; accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the company.

(d) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as de�ined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India; accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the company.

xvii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us Company has not 
incurred cash losses in the �inancial year and in the immediately preceding �inancial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

xix. On the basis of the �inancial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of �inancial assets and 
payment of �inancial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone �inancial statements 
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of 
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting isbased on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 
they fall due.
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xx. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, that other than 
ongoing projects, there were no unspent amounts that are required to transferred unspent amount to a 
Fund speci�ied in Schedule VII to the Companies Act (the act), in compliance with second proviso to sub 
section (5) of section 135 of the act.

xxi. (b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than 
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund speci�ied in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special 
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause (xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
quali�ications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 
(CARO) reports of the companies included in the standalone �inancial statements.

For,	MAAK	and	Associates	
[Firm Registration No. 135024W] 

Chartered Accountants 

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                               Marmik	Shah				                                                                     

Date: 26/05/2025                                                                                                                               Partner 

UDIN: 25133926BMJGXU4028                                                                                                       Mem. No: 133926 
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ANNEXURE	B	TO	THE	INDEPENDENT	AUDITOR'S	REPORT	OF	
EVEN	DATE	ON	THE	STANDALONE	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	OF	
CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED	(FORMERLY	known	

as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting of CASPIAN CORPORATE 
SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY known as INTELLIVATE CAPITAL ADVISORS
LIMITED) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
�inancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal �inancial 
controls based on the internal control over �inancial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
�inancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and ef�icient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable �inancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors'	Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal �inancial controls over �inancial 
reporting based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal �inancial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal �inancial controls 
over �inancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
�inancial controls system over �inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
�inancial controls over �inancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal �inancial 
controls over �inancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
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misstatement of the �inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal �inancial controls system over �inancial reporting.

Meaning	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting

6. A company's internal �inancial control over �inancial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of �inancial reporting and the preparation of �inancial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal �inancial control over �inancial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re�lect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
�inancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the �inancial statements.

Inherent	Limitations	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal �inancial 
controls over �inancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal �inancial 
control over �inancial Guidance Note on Audit of reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal �inancial controls 
system over �inancial reporting and such internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over �inancialreporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For,	MAAK	and	Associates
[Firm	Registration	No.	135024W]	Chartered	Accountants

Place:	Ahmedabad																																																																																																																											Marmik	Shah
Date:	26/05/2025																																																																																																																												Partner
UDIN:	25133926BMJGXU4028																																																																																																			Mem.	No:133926
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CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	Known	as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)	
CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Standalone	Balance	Sheet	as	at	March	31,	2025

As	per	our	report	of	even	date
For	MAAK	and	Associates																																																							For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors
Firm	Registration	No.:	135024W																																								Caspian	Corporate	Services	Limited	
Chartered	Accountants

CA Marmik Shah                                            Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi                                 Sampath Rao
Partner                                                             Managing Director                                                 Director
Membership No. 133926                            DIN:00966068                                                        DIN:07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                        Place: Hyderabad                                                    Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                        Date: 26/05/2025                                                  Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXU4028
   

Par�culars  Notes  
As  at  

March  31,2025  
As  at 

March  31,2024 

Assets   

 

2  

 

3  

4  
 
 

 

5
 

6
 

7
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

8
 

9
 

 
 
 
 

 

10
 

11

 

12

 

  

Non-current  assets    

Property,  plant  and  equipment  0.16  0.19 

Financial  Assets    

(i)  Investments  1,620.00  1,620.00 

(ii)  Loans  145.74  295.90 

1,765.91  1,916.09 

Current  assets    

Financial  assets    

(i)
 

Trade
 

receivables
 

100.63
 

123.28
 

(ii)
 

Cash
 

and
 

cash
 

equivalents
 

17.40
 

63.84
 

Other
 

Current
 

Assets
 

107.80
 

77.20
 

225.83
 

264.31
 

  

Total
 

assets
 

1,991.73
 

2,180.40
 

 

Equity
 

and
 

liabili�es
 

  

Equity
   

Equity
 

share
 

capital
 

1,266.00
 

422.00
 

Other
 

equity
 

626.65
 

1,458.31
 

Total
 

equity
 

1,892.65
 

1,880.31
 

 

Liabili�es
 

  

Current
 

liabili�es
   

Financial
 

liabili�es
   

(i)
 

Other
 

financial
 

liabili�es
 

69.34
 

189.38
 

Provisions

 

8.30

 

20.60

 

Other

 

current

 

liabili�es

 
21.46

 

90.11

 

99.10

 

300.09

 

Total

 

liabili�es

 

99.10

 

300.09

 
  

Total

 

equity and liabili�es

 

1,991.73

 

2,180.40

 

Notes

 

to Accounts

 

1

   

 

Rs.	In	Lakhs
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                                                                           Laxmi Narayana Punna                                       Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                           Chief Financial Of�icer                                        Company Secretary
                                                                           PAN:ATIPP6084C                                                  PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                           Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
                                                                           Date: 26/05/2025                                                Date: 26/05/2025

CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	Known	as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)	
CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Standalone	Pro�it	and	Loss	Statement	for	the	year	ended	Maech	31,	2025

As	per	our	report	of	even	date
For	MAAK	and	Associates																																																							For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors
Firm	Registration	No.:	135024W																																								Caspian	Corporate	Services	Limited	
Chartered	Accountants

CA	Marmik	Shah	                                         Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi                                 Sampath Rao
Partner                                                             Managing Director                                                 Director
Membership No. 133926                            DIN:00966068                                                        DIN:07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                        Place: Hyderabad                                                    Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                        Date: 26/05/2025                                                  Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXU4028

 
Par�culars  

 
Notes  

For  the  Year  ended  
March 31, 2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March 31, 2024  

 
Income 

 

 
16  
17  

 
 

 
18  
2  

19  
 
 
 
 

 
20  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
21

 

  

Revenue  from  opera�ons  193.85  186.63  
Other income 84.40  39.02  
Total  income 278.25  225.64  

 
Expenses 

  

Employee  benefits  expense  133.51  99.01  
Deprecia�on  and  amor�za�on  expense  0.03  0.00  
Other expenses 62.87  41.98  
Total  expense 196.42  140.99  
Profit before excep�onal  items and tax  81.84  84.65  
Excep�onal  items  -   

Profit before  tax 81.84  84.65  
Tax  expense/(credit)   

Current Tax  6.21  20.20  
Adjustment  of  tax  rela�ng  to  earlier  periods    

Deferred  tax   

Less: MAT  credit  en�tlement   

Total  tax expense 6.21  20.20  
Profit for  the period/year 75.62  64.46  
Other

 
comprehensive

 
income

   

Total
 
comprehensive

 
Income for

 
the

 
period/year

 
75.62

 
64.46

 
Basic

 
and

 
diluted

 
earnings

 
per equity

 
shares

 
(in Rs.) face value of

 
Rs. 10

 
each

 
0.06

 
0.05

 

 

Rs.	In	Lakhs
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                                                                           Laxmi Narayana Punna                                       Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                           Chief Financial Of�icer                                        Company Secretary
                                                                           PAN:ATIPP6084C                                                  PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                           Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
                                                                           Date: 26/05/2025                                                Date: 26/05/2025

CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	Known	as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)	
CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Standalone	Pro�it	and	Loss	Statement	for	the	year	ended	Maech	31,	2025

As	per	our	report	of	even	date
For	MAAK	and	Associates																																																							For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors
Firm	Registration	No.:	135024W																																								Caspian	Corporate	Services	Limited	
Chartered	Accountants

CA	Marmik	Shah	                                         Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi                                 Sampath Rao
Partner                                                             Managing Director                                                 Director
Membership No. 133926                            DIN:00966068                                                        DIN:07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                        Place: Hyderabad                                                    Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                        Date: 26/05/2025                                                  Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXU4028

 
Par�culars  

 
Notes  

For  the  Year  ended  
March 31, 2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March 31, 2024  

 
Income 

 

 
16  
17  

 
 

 
18  
2  

19  
 
 
 
 

 
20  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
21

 

  

Revenue  from  opera�ons  193.85  186.63  
Other income 84.40  39.02  
Total  income 278.25  225.64  

 
Expenses 

  

Employee  benefits  expense  133.51  99.01  
Deprecia�on  and  amor�za�on  expense  0.03  0.00  
Other expenses 62.87  41.98  
Total  expense 196.42  140.99  
Profit before excep�onal  items and tax  81.84  84.65  
Excep�onal  items  -   

Profit before  tax 81.84  84.65  
Tax  expense/(credit)   

Current Tax  6.21  20.20  
Adjustment  of  tax  rela�ng  to  earlier  periods    

Deferred  tax   

Less: MAT  credit  en�tlement   

Total  tax expense 6.21  20.20  
Profit for  the period/year 75.62  64.46  
Other

 
comprehensive

 
income

   

Total
 
comprehensive

 
Income for

 
the

 
period/year

 
75.62

 
64.46

 
Basic

 
and

 
diluted

 
earnings

 
per equity

 
shares

 
(in Rs.) face value of

 
Rs. 10

 
each

 
0.06

 
0.05

 

 

Rs.	In	Lakhs
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As	per	our	report	of	even	date
For	MAAK	and	Associates																																																							For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors
Firm	Registration	No.:	135024W																																								Caspian	Corporate	Services	Limited	
Chartered	Accountants

CA	Marmik	Shah	                                         Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi                                 Sampath Rao
Partner                                                             Managing Director                                                 Director
Membership No. 133926                            DIN:00966068                                                        DIN:07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                        Place: Hyderabad                                                    Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                        Date: 26/05/2025                                                  Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXU4028

                                                                           Laxmi Narayana Punna                                       Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                           Chief Financial Of�icer                                        Company Secretary
                                                                           PAN:ATIPP6084C                                                  PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                           Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
                                                                           Date: 26/05/2025                                                Date: 26/05/2025

(Formerly	Known	as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)	CIN:	
L74110TG2011PLC162524
Statement	of	change	in	equity	for	year	ended	March	31,	2025

The	accompanying	notes	form	an	integral	part	of	�inancials	statements	
As	per	our	report	of	even	date
For	MAAK	and	Associates																																																								For	and	on	behalf	of	Board	of	Directors	of	
Firm	Registration	No.:	135024W																																										CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED	
Chartered	Accountants																													(formerly	Known	As	Intellivate	Capital	Advisors	Limited)	
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CA	Marmik	Shah	                                         Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi                                 Sampath Rao
Partner                                                             Managing Director                                                 Director
Membership No. 133926                            DIN:00966068                                                        DIN:07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                        Place: Hyderabad                                                    Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                        Date: 26/05/2025                                                  Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXU4028

                                                                           Laxmi Narayana Punna                                       Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                           Chief Financial Of�icer                                        Company Secretary
                                                                           PAN:ATIPP6084C                                                  PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                           Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
                                                                           Date: 26/05/2025                                                Date: 26/05/2025

CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	Known	as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)	
CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Note	No.	1	:	Notes	To	The	Financial	Statements	For	The	Year	Ended	31st	March,	2025

1	CORPORATE	INFORMATION

CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICE LIMITED (Formerly Known as INTELLIVATE CAPITAL ADVISORS 
LIMITED )('the Company') is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its 
registered of�ice at F - BLOCK, 105,FIRST FLOOR, SURYA TOWERS,SARDAR PATEL ROAD, Hyderabad, 
.Telangana- 500003. The Company has its primary listings on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). These 
�inancial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 
26th May, 2025

The Company is engaged in the business of providing Advisory & Consultancy Services.

2	BASIS	OF	PREPARATION	AND	MEASUREMENT	

i	STATEMENT	OF	COMPLIANCE	WITH	IND	AS

The Company's Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared in 
accordance with provisions of the Indian Accounting Standards("Ind AS") noti�ied under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended from time to time.

All assets and liabilities are classi�ied as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current/ non- current classi�ication of assets and liabilities.

ii	ACCOUNTING	CONVENTION	AND	BASIS	OF	MEASUREMENT
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The Financial statements have been prepared on the Historical Cost Convention and on an accrual 
basis, except for certain �inancial assets and liabilities including de�ined bene�it plans - plan assets 
measured at fair value.

iii	USE	OF	JUDGMENTS,	ESTIMATES	AND	ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of �inancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosures of contingent liabilities 
and contingent assets. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The area involving critical estimates and judgements are:

a. Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment and intangibles.
b. Measurement of de�ined bene�it obligations.
c. Measurements and likelihood of occurrence if provisions and contingencies.
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets.
e. Impairment of Trade Receivables

3	SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
�inancial statements unless otherwise stated

i	PROPERTY,	PLANT	AND	EQUIPMENT	(PPE)

- Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost include purchase price, borrowing 
cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its location and working condition for its 
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate 
variations attributable to the assets, if any.

- Depreciation on Tangible Assets, PPE is charged on WDV method as per the useful life prescribed in Part 
C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the manner
speci�ied therein. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each �inancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

- Depreciation on �ixed assets added/ disposed off/ discarded during the year is provided on a pro-rata 
basis with reference to the month of addition/disposal/discarding.

- Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic bene�it associated 
with the expenditure will �low to the Company.

ii	INTANGIBLE	ASSETS
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- Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and 
rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, 
borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for 
its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange 
rate variations attributable to the assets.

- Intangible assets are amortised on WDV Method over the estimated useful life. The method of 
amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any 
changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

iii	INVESTMENTS

Investments are classi�ied as non current investments and current investments. Non Current 
Investments are stated at cost less provision, if any. Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or 
market value.

iv	FINANCE	COST

- Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are 
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A Qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

- All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Pro�it and Loss for the period for which they 
are incurred.

v	REVENUE	RECOGNITION

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the signi�icant risk and rewards of ownership and 
effective control on goods have been transferred to the buyer. Sales revenue is measured at fair value net 
of returns, trade discounts, volume rebates and taxes or duties.

- Revenue from services rendered is recognised as and when the services are rendered and related costs 
are incurred in accordance with the contractual agreement.

-	INTEREST	INCOME

Interest on Investments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account amounts invested 
and the rate of interest applicable. Interest on refunds from Statutory Authorities as and when 
applicable is recognised when such income is determinable, based on completed proceedings.
- Pro�it on Sale of Investments is recognised on completion of transactions.

i	EMPLOYEE	BENEFIT	EXPENSES

- Short term employee bene�its are recognized as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the year in 
which the related service is rendered.
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- Post employment and other long term employee bene�its are recognized as an expense in the Statement 
of Pro�it and Loss Account of the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is 
recognized at the present value of the amount payable, determined as per Actuarial Valuations. 
Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post employment and long term employee bene�its are 
recognized in the Pro�it and Loss Account.

vii	FOREGIN	CURRENCIES	TRANSACTIONS	AND	TRANSLATION

- Transactions relating to non monetary items & sale of goods / services denominated in foreign 
currencies are recorded
- Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional 
currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

- Exchange difference arising on settlement or conversion of foreign currency monetary items are 
recognised in Statement of Pro�it and Loss in the period in which they arise.
- Foreign Currency gains or losses are reported on net basis.

viii	TAX	EXPENSES

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of 
Pro�it and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or 
equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

-	Current	Tax

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the assessable income/ taxable income for the year 
determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,

1961. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rate that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

-	Deferred	Tax

Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities in the �inancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
pro�it. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates(and tax laws) that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

iv	PROVISIONS,	CONTINGENT	LIABILITIES	AND	CONTINGENT	ASSETS

- Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation(legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an out�low of resources embodying economic bene�its will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

- Contingent liability is disclosed in case of :
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a) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an out�low of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation ; and
b) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

- Contingent assets are disclosed where an in�low of economic bene�its is probable.

v	EARNING	PER	SHARE

- Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the Net Pro�it after tax for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
- Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the pro�it after tax, as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expenses or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basis EPS and the weighted average number of equity 
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

vi	Recent	accounting	pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) noti�ies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 12 
August 2024, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, as 
below.

Amendments	to	Ind	AS	117

MCA noti�ied Ind AS 117 a comprehensive standard that prescribe, recognition,measurement and 
disclosure requirements, to avoid diversities In practice for accounting Insurance contracts and It 
applies to all companies i.e.. to all insurance contracts regardless of the issuer. However Ind AS 117 is not 
applicable to the entities whose are insurance companies registered with IRDAI.

Additionally,amendments have been made to Ind AS 101 First time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards Ind AS 103 Business Combinations.

AS 105 Non·current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, Ind AS 107 Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures ,Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments and Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers to align them with Ind AS 117 The amendments also Introduce enhanced disclosure 
requirements,particularly In Ind AS 107, to provide clarity regarding �inancial Instruments associated 
with Insurance contracts.

Amendments	to	Ind	AS	116

The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which 
are not linked to index or a rate In a way It does not result Into gain on Right or use asset It retains.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that 
these amendments do not have a signi�icant impact on the Company's Financial Statements.
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Note	No:	3																																																																																																																																																			(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	4																																																																																																																																														(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	5																																																																																																																																																	(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	6																																																																																																																																																	(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Note	No:	7																																																																																																																																																	(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	8																																																																																																																																																		(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Notes:

Note	No:	9																																																																																																																																																					(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Notes:	Bonus	Issue

During the �inancial year 2024-25, the Company issued bonus shares in the ratio of 2:1 i.e., two equity 
share for every one equity share held) to the existing shareholders, by from the balance of security 
reserves.

Number of bonus share issued: 8,44,00,000 Face value per share: Rs. 1
Record Date: 09 August, 2024
The bonus issue was made in compliance with the provisions of Section 63 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and in accordance with the relevant provisions of Ind AS 33

Note	No:	10																																																																																																																																																		(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	11																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	12																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Other financial liabili�es 
As on 

March 31, 2025 

As on 

March 31, 2024 
Share Purchase Considera�on 69.34 189.38 

69.34 189.38 

 

Provision 
As on 

March 31, 2025 
As on 

March 31, 2024 

Provision for Expenses 0.40 0.40 

Provision for Tax 7.90 20.20 

 8.30 20.60 

 

Other liabili�es 
As on 

March 31, 2025 
As on 

March 31, 2024 

Statutory liability 5.99 10.75 

Other Current liabili�es 15.48 11.36 

Advance from customers - 68.00 

 21.46 90.11 
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		Note	No:	13																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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		Note	No:	14																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments, unbilled revenues, 
loans, trade payables and other payables as at March 31,2025 and March 31,2024 approximate the fair 
value because of their short-term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank 
deposits, other �inancial assets, other �inancial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at 
amortised cost is not signi�icant in each of the years presented.
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Note	No.	15																																																															RELATED	PARTY	TRANSACTIONS	DURING	FY	2024-25

Note	No.	16																																																																																																																																																	(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No.	17																																																																																																																																																	(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No.	18																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

 

Revenue
 

from
 

opera�on
 For

 
the

 
year

 
ended 

March 31, 2025
 

For
 
the

 
year

 
ended 

March 31, 2024
 

Business
 

Support
 

Services
 

39.07
 

186.63
 

Business
 

Support
 

Services
 

(Exempted)
 

154.78
 

-
 

Total
 

Other
 

income
 

193.85
 

186.63
 

 

Other  Income  
For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2025  

For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2024  

Interest  on  FD  

Interest  on  loan  

Creditor  Balance  wri�en  back  

0.04  

76.37  

8.00  
39.02 

Total  Other  income  84.40  39.02 

 

Employee  benefit  expense  
For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2025  

For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2024  

Salaries  &  Wages  123.74  91.44 

Contribu�on  to  P.F.  and  Other  Fund  9.77  7.57 
 133.51  99.01 
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Note	No.	19																																																														RELATED	PARTY	TRANSACTIONS	DURING	FY	2024-25

Note	No.	19		

Other

 

expenses

 

For

 

the

 

year

 

ended 

March 31, 2025

 

For

 

the

 

year

 

ended 

March 31, 2024

 
Adver�sing

 

Expenses
 

0.98
 

1.03
 Boarding

 
And

 
lodging

 
Expense

  
0.85

 Auditor's
 

remunara�on
   Audit

 
Fees

 
1.85

 
0.80

 BSE-
 

Annual
 

Lis�ng
 

Fees
 

5.12
 

3.37
 CDSL

 
Charges

 
1.67

 
0.32

 Bank
 

Charges
 

0.11
 

0.19
 GST

 
Expense

 
2.44

 
5.23

 Computer
 

Maintenance
  

0.05
 Interest

 
on

 
GST

 
0.03

 
0.01

 
Interest

 
on

 
Income

 
Tax

 
2.97

 
2.54

 
Uniform

 
Expenses

 
0.15

 
-
 

NSDL
 

Fees
 

0.74
 

0.45
 

Office
 

Expenses
 

1.13
 

4.05
 

Professional  Fees  9.90  17.12 
Web  Site  Expenses  2.18  5.08 
Virtual  Office  Rent  0.77  0.48 
ROC  Filing  Fees  7.65  0.15 
Balance  write  off  24.91  - 
Sundry  Expenses  0.28  0.26 

 62.87  41.98 

 

 

Payment  to  auditor  
For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2025  

For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2024  

Limited  Review  1.20  0.68 

Other  Audit  Fees  0.65  0.12 
 1.85  0.80 
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Note	No.	20																																																																RELATED	PARTY	TRANSACTIONS	DURING	FY	2024-25

Note	No.	21																																																																RELATED	PARTY	TRANSACTIONS	DURING	FY	2024-25

During the year, the Company issued bonus shares in the ratio of 2:1 on 09 August 2024, allotting two 
equity shares for every one held, out of the securities premium account. In line with Ind AS 33 (para 26), 
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2024 has been retrospectively adjusted as if the bonus 
issue occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

22. The Balances of GST Input Ledgers as per Books are subject to reconciliation with Balances as per 
GST Returns and consequential adjustmnets thereof.
23. Previous year �igures are regrouped wherever necessary.
24. The Balances of Debtors, Creditors and Loans & Advances are subject to Con�irmation and 
Reconciliation.

For MAAK and Associates                                                                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration No.: 135024W                                                       Caspian Corporate Services Limited 
Chartered Accountants 

CA Marmik Shah                                    Sukumar Reddy Garlapati                                        Venkatesh Velinani 
Partner                                                    Director                                                                         Director
Membership No. 133926                   DIN:00966068                                                             DIN:09391446

Income  tax  
For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2025  
For  the  year  ended 

March 31, 2024  

Profit  and  loss  sec�on  

Current  income  tax:  

Current  income  tax  charge  

Adjustment  in  respect  of  current  income  tax  of  previous  years  

Deferred  tax:  

Rela�ng  to  origina�on  and  reversal  of  temporary  differences  

 

Tax
 

expense
 

reported
 

in
 

the
 

Statement
 

of
 

profit
 

and
 

loss
 

 

6.21  

-  

 

1.18 

- 

6.21
 

1.18
 

Balance
 

sheet
 

sec�on
 

Current
 

Tax
 

Liabili�es
 

6.21
 

1.18
 

6.21
 

1.18
 

 

 

Earnings  per  share  
 

0  
 

0  

Profit/Loss  a�ributable  to  equity  shareholders  of  the  Company  75.62  64.46 

Average  number  of  equity  shares  1,266.00  1,266.00 

Adjusted  Basic  and  Diluted  earning  per  share  (in  Rs.)  0.06  0.05 
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Place: Ahmedabad                                        Place: Hyderabad                                                    Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                        Date: 26/05/2025                                                  Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXU4028

                                                                           Laxmi Narayana Punna                                       Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                           Chief Financial Of�icer                                        Company Secretary
                                                                           PAN:ATIPP6084C                                                  PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                           Place: Hyderabad                                                  Place: Hyderabad
                                                                           Date: 26/05/2025                                                Date: 26/05/2025
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TO	THE	MEMBERS	OF
CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	 Known	 as	 INTELLIVATE	 CAPITAL	 ADVISORS	
LIMITED)
Report	on	the	Consolidated	Financial	Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated �inancial statements of Caspian Corporate Services 
Limited (Formerly Known as Intellivate Capital Advisors Limited) (“the Company”), and its subsidiaries 
together referred as (“the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, 
the Consolidated Statement of Pro�it and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date, and a summary of the signi�icant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated �inancial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated �inancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the pro�it and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash �lows for the year ended on that date.

Basis	for	Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated �inancial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing speci�ied under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated �inancial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated �inancial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have ful�illed our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the �inancial statements.

Key	Audit	Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, where of most signi�icance in 
our audit of the Consolidated �inancial statements of the current year. These matters, where addressed 
in the contacts of our audit of the statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT	AUDITOR'S	REPORT
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Management's	Responsibility	for	the	Consolidated	�inancial	statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these Consolidated �inancial statement that give a true and fair view of the 
�inancial position, �inancial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash �lows 
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application.

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal �inancial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated �inancial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the �inancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are responsible for 
overseeing the Company's �inancial reporting process.

Auditor's	Responsibility	for	the	Audit	of	the	Financial	Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated �inancial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in�luence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these �inancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the �inancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion' The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal �inancial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal �inancial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast signi�icant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor/s report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated �inancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the �inancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated �inancial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves.

Report	on	Other	Legal	and	Regulatory	Requirements

1.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Pro�it and Loss and consolidated 
statement of change in equity and consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated �inancial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards speci�ied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquali�ied as on 31st March, 2025 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations as on 31st March, 2025 on its �inancial position in its 
consolidated �inancial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identi�ied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (“Ultimate Bene�iciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Bene�iciaries

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identi�ied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Bene�iciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bene�iciaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused them to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

(d) The �inal dividend declared and paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 
123 of companies Act, 2013.

(e) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account 
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to 
the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the �inancial year ended March 31, 2025.

2. As required with reference to the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), we give in the “Annexure-A” a statement on the 
matters speci�ied to the extent applicable.

                                                                                                 For, MAAK and Associates
                                                                                                 [Firm Registration No. 135024W] Chartered
                                                                                                 Accountants

Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Marmik Shah              
Date: 26/05/2025                                                              Partner              
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXW2137                                     Mem. No:133926
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ANNEXURE	 A	 TO	 THE	 INDEPENDENT	 AUDITOR'S	 REPORT	 OF	
EVEN	DATE	ON	THE	CONSOLIDATED	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	OF	
CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED	(FORMERLY	known	as	
INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)

Report	on	the	Internal	Financial	Controls	under	Clause	(i)	of	Sub-section	3	of	Section	143	of	the	
Companies	Act,	2013	(“the	Act”)

1. We have audited the internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting of CASPIAN CORPORATE 
SERVICES LIMITED (FORMERLY known as INTELLIVATE CAPITAL ADVISORS
LIMITED) (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries together referred as (“the Group”) as of March 31, 2025 
in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated �inancial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management's	Responsibility	for	Internal	Financial	Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal �inancial 
controls based on the internal control over �inancial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
�inancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and ef�icient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable �inancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors'	Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal �inancial controls over 
�inancial reporting based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal �inancial controls, both applicable 
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal �inancial 
controls over �inancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal �inancial controls system over �inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
�inancial controls over �inancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the �inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal �inancial controls system over �inancial reporting.

Meaning	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting

6. A company's internal �inancial control over �inancial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of �inancial reporting and the preparation of �inancial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal �inancial control over �inancial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re�lect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
�inancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the �inancial 
statements.

Inherent	Limitations	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	over	Financial	Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
�inancial controls over �inancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
�inancial control over �inancial Guidance Note on Audit of reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal �inancial controls 
system over �inancial reporting and such internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over �inancial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.
                                                                                                 For, MAAK and Associates
                                                                                                 [Firm Registration No. 135024W] Chartered
                                                                                                 Accountants

Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Marmik Shah              
Date: 26/05/2025                                                              Partner              
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXW2137                                     Mem. No:133926
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CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	 Known	 as	 INTELLIVATE	 CAPITAL	 ADVISORS	
LIMITED)	CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Consolidated	Balance	Sheet	as	on	31st	March,	2025

As per our report of even date
For MAAK and Associates                                                         For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 135024W                                           CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                         SUKUMAR REDDY      SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI
CA Marmik Shah                                                                          GARLAPATHI
Partner                                                                                          Managing Director     Director
Membership No.                                                                         DIN:00966068            DIN: 07999868

Par�culars Notes 
As at 

March
 

31,2025
 

As at

March 31,2024

Assets
  

 2

 2

 

 

3

 

4

 

5

 

6

 
 
 

 

7

 

8

 

9

 

4

 

5

 

10

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

11

 

12

 

13

 
 
 
 

 

14

 

15

 
 

14

16

15

17

18

28

  Non-current

 
assets

   Property,

 

plant

 

and

 

equipment

 

477.81

 

25.41

Right

 

of

 

use

 

assets

 

108.25

 

4.48

Non-current

 

financial

 

assets

   
Investments

 

27.25

 

2.75

Loans

 

-

 

82.84

Other

 

financial

 

assets

 

16.11

 

9.93

Deferred

 

tax

 

assets

 

(net)

 

35.55

 

3.18

664.98

 

128.58

Current

 

assets

   

Financial

 

assets

   

(i)

 

Trade

 

receivables

 

6,257.19

 

6,400.33

(ii)

 

Cash

 

and

 

cash

 

equivalents

 

334.11

 

294.64

(iii)

 

Bank

 

balance

 

other

 

than

 

cash

 

and

 

cash

 

equivalents

 

118.68

 

168.83

(iv)

 

Loans

 

-

 

481.88

(v)

 

Other

 

financial

 

assets

 

291.65

 

316.46

Other

 

current

 

assets

 

695.34

 

893.52

7,696.97

 

8,555.66

Total

 

assets

 

8,361.94

 

8,684.25

 

Equity

 

and

 

liabili�es

 

  

Equity

   

Equity

 

share

 

capital

 

1,266.00

 

422.00

Other

 

equity

 

1,641.30

 

2,289.30

Non

 

Controlling

 

Interest

 

0.43

 

0.43

Total

 

equity

 

2,907.73

 

2,711.73

Liabili�es

   

Non-current

 

liabili�es

   

Financial

 

liabili�es

   

(i)

 

Borrowings

 

391.81

 

279.17

(ii)

 

Other

 

financial

 

Liabili�es

 

108.58

 

48.72

 

Current liabili�es

500.38

 

327.89

Financial liabili�es

(i) Borrowings 3,906.18 3,533.47

(ii) Trade payables 531.35 1,440.99

(iii) Other financial liabili�es 214.16 289.44

Provisions 203.93 270.42

Other current liabili�es 22.57 90.11

Liabili�es for current tax (net) 75.65 20.20

4,953.84 5,644.63

Total liabili�es 5,454.22 5,972.52

Total equity and liabili�es 8,361.94 8,684.25

Significant Accoun�ng Policies 1

																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Place: Hyderabad               Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                                              Date: 26/05/2025             Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXW2137

                                                                                                 Laxmi Narayan Punna                   Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                                                 Chief Financial Of�icer                   Company 
                                                                                                                                                              Secretary

                                                                                                 PAN: ATIPP6084C                           PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                                                 Place: Hyderabad                            Place: Hyderabad
                                                                                                 Date: 26/05/2025                          Date: 26/05/2025
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CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	 Known	 as	 INTELLIVATE	 CAPITAL	 ADVISORS	
LIMITED)	CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Consolidated	Statement	of	Pro�it	&	Loss	Account	 for	 the	year	
ended	31st	March,2025

As per our report of even date

For MAAK and Associates                                                         For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 135024W                                           CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                         SUKUMAR REDDY      SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI
CA Marmik Shah                                                                          GARLAPATHI
Partner                                                                                          Managing Director     Director
Membership No.                                                                         DIN:00966068            DIN: 07999868

Par�culars  Notes  
For  the year  ended  

March  31,  2025  
For  the year  ended  

March  31,  2024  

Income   

23  

24  
 
 

 

25
 

2
 

26
 

27
 

 
 
 
 

 

28
 

 

28

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

29

 

  

Revenue  from  opera�ons  8,565.03  8,972.17  

Other  income  1,001.25  61.19  

Total  income  9,566.28  9,033.36  

Expenses
   

Employee
 

benefits
 

expense
 

236.74
 

162.63
 

Deprecia�on
 

and
 

amor�za�on
 

expense
 

110.89
 

17.95
 

Finance
 

costs
 

242.43
 

268.98
 

Other
 

expenses
 

8,572.71
 

7,708.44
 

Total
 

expense
 

9,162.76
 

8,158.00
 

Profit
 

before excep�onal
 

items
 

and tax
 

403.52
 

875.37
 

Excep�onal
 

items
 

-
 

-
 

Profit before tax
 

403.52
 

875.37
 

Tax
 

expense/(credit)
   

Current
 

Tax
 

172.00
 

73.04
 

Adjustment

 

of

 

tax

 

rela�ng

 

to

 

earlier

 

periods

   

Deferred

 

tax

 

-27.79

 

9.58

 

Total

 

tax

 

expense

 

144.21

 

82.62

 

Profit

 

for

 

the

 

period/year

 

259.30

 

792.75

 

Other

 

comprehensive

 

income

 

-

 

-

 

Other

 

comprehensive

 

income

 

not

 

to

 

be

 

reclassified

 

to

 

profit

 

or

 

loss

 

in

   

subsequent

 

periods

 

-

 

-

 

Total

 

comprehensive Income for

 

the

 

period/year

 

259.30

 

792.75

 

Profit

 

a�ributable

 

to:

   

-

 

Owner/Holding

 

Co.

 

259.30

 

792.75

 

-

 

Non-controlling

 

interests

 

-

 

-

 

Total

 

Comprehensive

 

Income

 

a�ributable

 

to:

   

-

 

Owner/Holding

 

Co.

 

259.30

 

792.75

 

-

 

Non-controlling

 

interests

 

-

 

-

 

Basic

 

and

 

diluted earnings

 

per

 

equity shares

 

(in Rs.) face

 

value

 

of

 

Rs.

 

10 each

 

0.20

 

0.63

 

 

																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Place: Hyderabad               Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                                              Date: 26/05/2025             Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXW2137

                                                                                                 Laxmi Narayan Punna                   Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                                                 Chief Financial Of�icer                   Company 
                                                                                                                                                              Secretary

                                                                                                 PAN: ATIPP6084C                           PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                                                 Place: Hyderabad                            Place: Hyderabad
                                                                                                 Date: 26/05/2025                          Date: 26/05/2025
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CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	 Known	 as	 INTELLIVATE	 CAPITAL	 ADVISORS	
LIMITED)	CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Consolidated	Statement	of	Cash	Flow	 for	 the	year	ended	31st	
March,2025

Par�culars  For

 

the

 

year

 

ended

 March 31, 2025

 

 For the year ended

March 31, 2024

Cash flow from

 

opera�ng

 

ac�vi�es

   Profit before tax

 

as

 

per

 

statement

 

of

 

profit

 

and

 

loss

 

403.52

 

875.37

Adjustments

 

for:

   
Dividend Income

 

-12.23

  Deprecia�on and

 

amor�sa�on

 

110.89

 

17.95

Interest income

 

-38.33

 

-27.59
Finance Cost

 

242.43

 

268.98

Opera�ng profit

 

before

 

working

 

capital

 

changes

 

706.27

 

1,134.70

Movements

 

in

 

working

 

capital

 

:

   (Increase)/decrease

 

in

 

trade receivables

 

143.15

 

2,834.98

(Increase)/decrease in

 

financial

 

assets

 

18.63

 

-27.41

(Increase)/decrease

 

in

 

other

 

current liabili�es

 

-67.55

 

56.89

(Increase)/decrease

 

in

 

other

 

current assets

 

165.80

 

-60.51
Increase/(decrease)

 

in trade

 

payables

 

&

 

other liabili�es

 

-909.66

 

-3,741.78

Increase/(decrease)

 

in

 

provisions

 

-11.03

 

61.66
Increase/(decrease)

 

in

 

financial

 

liabili�es

 

-15.43

 

-370.43
Cash generated

 

from

 

opera�ons

 

30.18

 

-111.89

Direct taxes

 

(paid)/refund

 

(net)

 

-144.21

 

-82.62

Net cash Inflow

 

/

 

(Ou�low)

 

from

 

opera�ng

 

ac�vi�es

 

(A)

 

-114.03

 

-194.51

Cash flows from

 

inves�ng

 

ac�vi�es

 

  
Purchase of

 

property,

 

plant and

 

equipments

 

(Including

 

capital

 

work

 

in

 

progress,capital

 

advances

 
and capital creditors)

 

-667.06

 

-5.88

Increase In Investment

 

-24.50

  
Loan received

 

back

 

564.72

 

10.33

Loan given -

 

-222.00

Interest received

 

38.33

 

27.59

Sale of investment in

 

Mutual

 

Fund

 

-

 

17.25
Dividend Received

 

12.23

 

-

Net cash inflow

 

from

 

inves�ng

 

ac�vi�es

 

(B)

 

-76.28

 

-172.71

Cash flows from

 

financing

 

ac�vi�es

 

  
Increase/Decrease in

 

Borrowings

 

485.35

 

575.06

Interest Expense

 

-

 

-268.98

Dividend Paid

 

-63.30

 

-21.10
Finance Cost -242.43 -

Net cash Inflow from financing ac�vi�es (C) 179.63 284.99

Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A + B + C) -10.68 -82.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 463.47 545.70

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 452.79 463.47

Notes:

Component of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 290.36 275.56

Balances with scheduled bank 43.75 19.09

On current accounts 118.68 168.83

Balance in escrow account
Other bank balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the period 452.79 463.47

																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Summary	of	signi�icant	accounting	policies	refer	note	2.2

(1) The Statement of Cash �lows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 – 
Statement of Cash �lows noti�ied under section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended).

(2) Disclosure required under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash �low statements under Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) is presented in Accounting Policy.

(3) Previous year �igures are regrouped/reclassi�ied wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date

For MAAK and Associates                                                 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 135024W                                   CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

                                                                                                 SUKUMAR REDDY      SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI
CA Marmik Shah                                                                  GARLAPATHI
Partner                                                                                   Managing Director     Director
Membership No.                                                                  DIN:00966068            DIN: 07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Place: Hyderabad               Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                                              Date: 26/05/2025             Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXW2137

                                                                                                 Laxmi Narayan Punna                   Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                                                 Chief Financial Of�icer                   Company 
                                                                                                                                                              Secretary

                                                                                                 PAN: ATIPP6084C                           PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                                                 Place: Hyderabad                            Place: Hyderabad
                                                                                                 Date: 26/05/2025                          Date: 26/05/2025
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CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	Known	as	INTELLIVATE	CAPITAL	ADVISORS	LIMITED)
CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Statement	of	Consolidated	Changes	in	Equity	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of �inancials statements 

As per our report of even date

For MAAK and Associates                                                 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 135024W                                   CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

                                                                                                 SUKUMAR REDDY      SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI
CA Marmik Shah                                                                  GARLAPATHI
Partner                                                                                   Managing Director     Director
Membership No.                                                                  DIN:00966068            DIN: 07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Place: Hyderabad               Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                                              Date: 26/05/2025             Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXW2137

                                                                                                 Laxmi Narayan Punna                   Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                                                 Chief Financial Of�icer                   Company 
                                                                                                                                                              Secretary

                                                                                                 PAN: ATIPP6084C                           PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                                                 Place: Hyderabad                            Place: Hyderabad
                                                                                                 Date: 26/05/2025                          Date: 26/05/2025

Par�culars
 

Equity  share 

capital
 

Retained
 

earning
 

Securi�es 

Premium
 

Capital
 

Reserves Total

Balance as at April 01, 2023

 
422.00

 
197.79

 
1,216.60

 
99.63 1,936.02

Profit for the year

 

796.38

   

796.38

Less : Dividend 21.10

 

21.10

Total comprehensive income

 

for

 

the

 

year

 

422.00

 

973.07

 

1,216.60

 

99.63 2,711.30

Balance as at April 01, 2024

 

422.00

 

973.07

 

1,216.60

 

99.63 2,711.30

Profit for the year

 

259.30

   

259.30

Less : Dividend

 

63.30

  

63.30

Bonus issuance expenses wri�en off 844.00 844.00

Share issue during the year 844.00 844.00

Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,266.00 1,169.07 372.60 99.63 2,907.30

																																																																																																																																																(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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CASPIAN	CORPORATE	SERVICES	LIMITED
(Formerly	 Known	 as	 INTELLIVATE	 CAPITAL	 ADVISORS	
LIMITED)	CIN:L74110TG2011PLC162524
Notes	 to	 the	 Consolidated	 Financial	 Statements	 For	 The	 Year	
Ended	31st	March,	2025

Note	1	:	Signi�icant	Accounting	Poliicy

1	CORPORATE	INFORMATION

CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICE LIMITED (Formerly Known as INTELLIVATE CAPITAL ADVISORS 
LIMITED )('the Company') is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its 
registered of�ice at F - BLOCK, 105,FIRST FLOOR, SURYA TOWERS,SARDAR PATEL ROAD, Hyderabad, 
.Telangana- 500003. The Company has its primary listings on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). These 
�inancial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 
26/05/2025
The Company is engaged in the business of providing manpower supply services.

The Company and its following subsidiaries (jointly referred to as the 'Group' herein under) considered 
in these consolidated �inancial statements are:

2	BASIS	OF	PREPARATION	AND	MEASUREMENT	

I			STATEMENT	OF	COMPLIANCE	WITH	IND	AS

The Company's Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared in 
accordance with provisions of the Indian Accounting Standards("Ind AS") noti�ied under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended from time to time.

All assets and liabilities are classi�ied as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current/ non- current classi�ication of assets and liabilities.

ii			ACCOUNTING	CONVENTION	AND	BASIS	OF	MEASUREMENT

The Financial statements have been prepared on the Historical Cost Convention and on an accrual basis, 
except for certain �inancial assets and liabilities including de�ined bene�it plans
- plan assets measured at fair value.

Subsidiaries  Incorporated  In  India  As at 

March 31,2024 
As at 

March 31,2023 

Sumathi  Corporate  Services  Private  Lmited  100.00% 100.00% 

Sub-  Subsidiaries  Incorporated  In  India    

Sumathi  Brightshine  Airport  Services  Private  Lmited  74.00% 74.00% 
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iii			USE	OF	JUDGMENTS,	ESTIMATES	AND	ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of �inancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosures of contingent liabilities 
and contingent assets. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The area involving critical estimates and judgements are:
a. Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment and intangibles.
b. Measurement of de�ined bene�it obligations.
c. Measurements and likelihood of occurrence if provisions and contingencies.
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets.
e. Impairment of Trade Receivables

3	SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
�inancial statements unless otherwise stated

I			INVESTMENTS

Investments are classi�ied as non current investments and current investments. Non Current 
Investments are stated at cost less provision, if any. Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or 
market value.

ii			FINANCE	COST

- Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are 
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A Qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.
- All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Pro�it and Loss for the period for which they 
are incurred.

iii			REVENUE	RECOGNITION

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the signi�icant risk and rewards of ownership and 
effective control on goods have been transferred to the buyer. Sales revenue is measured at fair value net 
of returns, trade discounts, volume rebates and taxes or duties.
- Revenue from services rendered is recognised as and when the services are rendered and related costs 
are incurred in accordance with the contractual agreement.

-   INTEREST INCOME
Interest on Investments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account amounts invested 
and the rate of interest applicable. Interest on refunds from Statutory Authorities as and when 
applicable is recognised when such income is determinable, based on completed proceedings.
- Pro�it on Sale of Investments is recognised on completion of transactions.
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vi	 EMPLOYEE	BENEFIT	EXPENSES

- Short term employee bene�its are recognized as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the year in 
which payment for the related service is made.
Post employment and other long term employee bene�its are recognized as an expense in the Statement 
of Pro�it and Loss Account of the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is 
recognized at the present value of the amount payable, determined as per Actuarial Valuations. 
Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post employment and long term employee bene�its are 
recognized in the Pro�it and Loss Account.

v			TAX	EXPENSES

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of 
Pro�it and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or 
equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

-		Current	Tax

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the assessable income/ taxable income for the year 
determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company's current tax is 
calculated using tax rate that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting 
period.

-		Deferred	Tax

Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities in the �inancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the

computation of taxable pro�it. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the rates that are 
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,

based on the tax rates(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period.

vi		PROVISIONS,	CONTINGENT	LIABILITIES	AND	CONTINGENT	ASSETS

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation(legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an out�low of resources embodying economic bene�its will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

-  Contingent liability is disclosed in case of :
a) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an out�low of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation ; and
b)   a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

-  Contingent assets are disclosed where an in�low of economic bene�its is probable.
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vii	 EARNING	PER	SHARE

-  Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the Net Pro�it after tax for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
-  Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the pro�it after tax, as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expenses or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basis EPS and the weighted average number of equity 
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

viii			Recent	accounting	pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) noti�ies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 12 
August 2024, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, as 
below.

Amendments	to	Ind	AS	117

MCA noti�ied Ind AS 117 a comprehensive standard that prescribe, recognition,measurement and 
disclosure requirements, to avoid diversities In practice for accounting Insurance contracts and It 
applies to all companies i.e.. to all insurance contracts regardless of the issuer. However Ind AS 117 is not 
applicable to the entities whose are insurance companies registered with IRDAI.
Additionally,amendments have been made to Ind AS 101 First time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards Ind AS 103 Business Combinations.
AS 105 Non·current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, Ind AS 107 Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures ,Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments and Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers to align them with Ind AS 117 The amendments also Introduce enhanced disclosure 
requirements,particularly In Ind AS 107, to provide clarity regarding �inancial Instruments associated 
with Insurance contracts.

Amendments	to	Ind	AS	116

The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which 
are not linked to index or a rate In a way It does not result Into gain on Right or use asset It retains.
The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that 
these amendments do not have a signi�icant impact on the Company's Financial Statements.

ix			Provisions,	contingent	liabilities	and	contingent	assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an out�low of resources embodying economic bene�its will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based 
on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties 
associated with the present obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash �lows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 
the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that re�lects current market assessments of the time value of 

Page 154 of 163



money and the risks speci�ic to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as �inance cost.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect 
to the obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the 
related provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to re�lect the current best estimate. In 
those cases where the out�low of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered 
improbable or remote, no liability is recognised.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be 
con�irmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not 
recognised because it is not possible that an out�low of resources embodying economic bene�it will be 
required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. 
The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in other notes to standalone �inancial 
statements.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the 
possibility of an in�low of economic bene�its. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when 
in�low of economic bene�its is probable, related asset is disclosed.

x			Government	grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply 
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in pro�it and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the 
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. 
Speci�ically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, 
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets, the cost of assets are presented at gross value and 
grants thereon are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to pro�it and loss 
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate �inancial support to the Company with no future related costs are 
recognised in pro�it and loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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Par�culars  of Assets 
Rate  of  

Dep  (%)  

GROSS  BLOCK  DEPRECIATION  NET  BLOCK  

As  on  

01.04.2024  
Addi�ons  

As  on  

31.03.2025  
Up  to  

31.03.2024  
For  the  

Year  
Upto  

31.03.2025  
As  on  

31.03.2025  
As  on  

31.03.2024  

 
Furniture  

 
CA 27 WD  Vaccum  Cleaner  

 
Baggage  Towing  Tractor  (Electric) -  AET 

20 

Ba�ery  Charger  For  BFL  Computer  

 
Electric  Buses  (JBM)  ERTIGA  CAR  

Fire Ex�nguisher  Equipments  

 
Furniture  & Fixtures  

 
Galvanized  Closed  Baggage  Trolley  8X4  

 
Galvanized  Open  Baggage  Trolley  8X4  

 
Office

 
Equipments

 

 
Towable

 

BFL5M

 

Battery

 

Operated with 

Canopy
 

 
Towable

 

Mechanical

 

Extendable

 

Step

 

Ladder
 

with
 
Canopy

 

 
Towable

 

Water

 

Cart

 

1000

 

Ltr, Painted, 

Engine
 

Opreted
 

Vehicles

 

Equipment
 

 
25.89%  

 
15.00%  

 

 
31.23%  

 

 
25.89%  

 
63.16%  

 
31.23%  

 
39.30%  

 
25.89%  

 
25.89%

 

 
25.89%

 
 

 
25.89%

 

 
45.07%

 
 

 25.89%
 

 
 

 25.89%
 

 
 

 25.89%
 

 

 25.89%
 

 18.10%
 

 
1.13  

 
0.19  

 

 
-  

 

-
 

28.64  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-

 

 
-

 
 

 
-

 

 
-

 
 

 -
 

 
 

 -
 

 
 

 -
 

 

 24.43
 

 31.62
 

 
-  

 
-  

 

 
76.13  

 

 
5.22  

 
0.78  

 
316.43  

 
10.78  

 
1.63  

 
6.80

 

 
29.91

 
 

 
5.65

 

 
1.08

 
 

 26.51
 

 
 

 47.78
 

 
 

 3.62
 

 

 -
 

 -
 

 
1.13  

 
0.19  

 

 
76.13  

 

 
5.22  

 
29.43  

 
316.43  

 
10.78  

 
1.63  

 
6.80

 

 
29.91

 
 

 
5.65

 

 
1.08

 
 

 26.51
 

 
 

 47.78
 

 
 

 3.62
 

 

 24.43
 

 31.62
 

 
1.11  

 
0.00  

 

 
-  

 

-
 

28.64  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-

 

 
-

 
 

 
-

 

 
-

 
 

 -
 

 
 

 -
 

 
 

 -
 

 

 14.05
 

 16.79
 

 
0.02  

 
0.03  

 

 
18.43  

 

 
1.05  

 
0.05  

 
29.41  

 
1.74  

 
0.15  

 
0.55

 

 
6.05

 
 

 
1.14

 

 
0.16

 
 

 5.36
 

 
 

 9.69
 

 
 

 0.73
 

 

 2.69
 

 2.69
 

 
1.13  

 
0.03  

 

 
18.43  

 

 
1.05  

 
28.69  

 
29.41  

 
1.74  

 
0.15  

 
0.55

 

 
6.05

 
 

 
1.14

 

 
0.16

 
 

 5.36
 

 
 

 9.69
 

 
 

 0.73
 

 

 16.74
 

 19.47
 

 
-  

0.16  

 
57.69  

 

 
4.17  

 
0.74  

 
287.02  

 
9.04  

 
1.48  

 
6.25

 

 
23.86

 
 

 
4.51

 

 
0.92

 
 

 21.15
 

 
 

 38.09
 

 
 

 2.89
 

 

 7.69
 

 12.15
 

 
0.02  

 
0.19  

 

 
-  

 

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-

 

 
-

 
 

 
-

 

 
-

 
 

 -
 

 
 

 -
 

 
 

 -
 

 

 10.37
 

 14.83
 

Total
  

86.01
 

532.32
 

618.33
 

60.60
 

79.93
 

140.53
 

477.81
 

25.41
 

 Right

 
Of

 
Use

 
Of

 
Assets

  

67.17

 
134.74

 
201.91

 
62.69

 
30.96

 
93.65

 
108.25

 
4.48

 

 
Investments 

As  at  
March  31,  2025  

As  at  
March  31,  2024  

Non Current 
Investments  at  fair  value  through  other  comprehensive  income  (FVTOCI)  
Investment in equity share of Subsidiary companies  
Sumathi  Corporate  Services  Private  Limited  (45,00,000  of  Equity  Shares  of  face  value  of  Rs.  10  each  at  a  premium  of  Rs.  26/-  (Rupees  Twenty  Six  Only)  at  an  
issue price  of  Rs.  36/-  (Rupees  Thirty  Six  Only)  per  equity  share)  
Other Investment 
Neeladri Chit Fund  Private  Limited-investment  

 
 
 

-  
 

 
27.25  

 
 
 

-  
 

 
2.75  

Total 27.25  2.75  

 
Loans 

As  at  
March  31,  2025  

As  at  
March  31,  2024  

Non Current 
Loans and Advance  to  related  par�es  
Loans and Advance to others  

 
Current 
Loan to subsidiaries 

-  
-  

 

 
-  

-  
82.84  

 

 
481.88  

Total -  564.72  

 

Note	No:	2	Property,	plant	and	equipment																																																																																																																																																														(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	3																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	4																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Trade	receivables	ageing	schedule	for	March	31,	2025

Trade	receivables	ageing	schedule	for	March	31,	2024

Par�culars 

Outstanding  For  Following  periods  from  Due  Date  of  Payment  

Total  
No  Due  

Less  than  6  
months  

6  Months  -  1  year  1-2  Years  2-3  Years  More  than  3  years  

Undisputed Trade  receivables  -  Considered  
good 

-  4,533.04  861.92  800.35  60.95  0.92  6,257.18  

Undisputed Trade  receivables  -  Considered  
Doub�ul 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Disputed Trade  receivables  -  Considered  good  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Disputed  Trade  receivables  -  Considered  
Doub�ul 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

 

Par�culars 

Outstanding  For  Following  periods  from  Due  Date  of  Payment   
Total  

No  Due  
Less  than  6  

months  
6  Months  -  1  year  1-2  Years  2-3  Years  More  than  3  years  

Undisputed Trade  receivables  -  Considered  
good 

-  6,359.44  8.18  32.71  -  -  6,400.33  

Undisputed Trade  receivables  -  Considered  
Doub�ul 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Disputed Trade  receivables -  Considered  good  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Disputed  Trade  receivables  -  Considered  
Doub�ul 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

 

Other financial  assets  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Non-current   

Rent Deposit 9.75  9.75  
Security Deposits 6.36  0.18  

 16.11  9.93  
Current   

Tender Deposits  276.62  
Accrued Interest  on  FD  2.67   

Fixed Deposit  against  Bank  Guarrenty  39.84  39.84  
Earnest Money  Deposit  249.14   

Total 307.76  336.32  

 

Note	No:	5																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Deferred tax liabili�es/Assets (net)  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  
Deffered  Tax  Asset 35.55  3.18  
Total 35.55  3.18  

 

Note	No:	6																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Trade  receivables 
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Current   

Unsecured  considered  good  unless  stated  otherwise    

- from others 6,257.19  6,400.33  
Total 6,257.19  6,400.33  

 

Note	No:	7																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Cash  and  cash  equivalents  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Balances  with  banks:    

Balance With  Bank  43.75  19.09  
Cash  on  hand 290.36  275.55  
Total  334.11  294.64  

 

Note	No:	8																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Bank balances  other  than  cash  and  cash  equivalents  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Deposits with  original  maturity  over  3  months  but  less  than  12  months  
Fixed deposit  with  banks  

 
118.68  

 
168.83  

Total 118.68  168.83  

 

Note	No:	9																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Other  assets 
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Current   

Advance  To  Suppliers  306.80  584.60  
Accrued  Interest  on  Loans  Given  102.53  74.72  
Other  Advance  4.47  8.74  
Prepaid Expenses  8.30  -  
Balances  with  statutory/  Government  authori�es  273.24  214.17  
Interest on  Term  Loan  During  Moratorium  Period  -  11.29  
Total  695.34  893.52  

 

Note	No:	10																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Share  capital 
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Authorised 
4,51,00,000  Equity Shares of Rs.1  each  
13,00,00,000  Equity  Shares  of  Rs.1  each  

 

 
1,300.00  

 
451.00  

1,300.00  -  
Issued,  subscribed  and  fully  paid  up  shares  
4,22,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.1 each  
12,66,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.1 each  

 

 
1,266.00  

 
422.00  

1,266.00  422.00  

 
Reconcilia�on  of  the  number  of  Equity  Shares  outstanding:  
Par�culars No.  of  Shares  No.  of  Shares  
At  the  beginning  of  the  year  
Add:  Iissued  during  the  year  

4,22,00,000  
8,44,00,000  

4,22,00,000  
-  

Shares  outstanding  at  the  end  of  the  year  12,66,00,000  4,22,00,000  

 
Terms/rights

 
a�ached

 
to

 
equity

 
shares:

 
The

 
Company

 
has

 
only

 
one

 
class

 
of

 
equity

 
shares

 
having

 
par

 
value

 
of

 
Rs.

 
1

 
per

 
share.

 
Each

 
holder

 
of

 
equity

 
shares

 
is

 
en�tled

 
to

 
one

 
vote

 
per

 
share.

 
In

 
the

 
event

 
of

 
liquida�on

 
of

 
the

 
Company,

 
the

 
holders

 
of

 
equity

 
shares

 
will

 
be

 
en�tled

 
to

 
receive

 
remaining

 
assets

 
of

 
the

 
Company,

 
a�er

 
distribu�on

 
of

 
all

 
preferen�al

 
amounts.

 
The

 
distribu�on

 
will

 
be in propor�on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 

 Details
 
of

 
shareholder

 
holding

 
more

 
than

 
5%

 
shares

 
in

 
the

 
Company

 

Par�culars
 

As
 

at
 

March
 

31,2025
 

As
 

at
 

March
 

31,2024
 

No.
 

%
 

of
 

Holding
 

No.
 

%
 

of
 

Holding
 

Sumathi
 
Infratech

 
Private

 
Limited

 
6,47,05,227

 
51.11%

 
2,32,76,221

 
55.16%

 
Sukumar

 
Reddy

 
Garlapathi

 
1,91,15,106

 
15.10%

 
63,71,702

 
15.10%

 

 Details
 
of

 
shareholding

 
of

 
Promoters

 
as

 
at

 
March

 
31,

 
2025

 Promoter
 
Name

 
No

 
of

 
Share

 
%

 
of

 
total

 
shares

 
%

 
Change

 Sumathi
 
Infratech

 
Private

 
Limited

 Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi
 Satyanarayana

 
Reddy

 

6,47,05,227
 1,91,15,106
 59,61,570

 

51.11%
 15.10%
 4.71%

 

-1.51%
 1.15%
 0.36%
 

 
8,97,81,903

 
70.92%

  

 Details
 
of

 
shareholding

 
of

 
Promoters

 
as

 
at

 
March

 
31,

 
2024

 Promoter
 
Name

 
No

 
of

 
Share

 
%

 
of

 
total

 
shares

 
%

 
Change

 Sumathi
 
Infratech

 
Private

 
Limited

 Sukumar Reddy Garlapathi
 Satyanarayana

 
Reddy

 

2,32,76,221
 63,71,702

 19,87,190

 

55.16%
 15.10%
 4.71%

 

-
 -
 -

 
 

3,16,35,113

 

74.96%

  

 
Other  equity 

As  at  
March  31,  2025  

As  at  
March  31,  2024  

(i)  Retained  earnings    

Opening Balance  973.06  197.78  
Add  :  Profit  for  the  year  259.30  796.38  
Less  :  Dividend  Dis�buted  63.30  21.10  
Total  Retained  earnings  1,169.07  973.06  
(ii)  Security  Premium    

Securi�es Premium  1,216.60  1,216.60  
Less:  Bonus  issuance  expenses  wri�en  off  844.00  -  
Total  Securi�es  Premium  372.60  1,216.60  
(iii)  Capital  Reserve  99.63  99.63  
Closing balance  1,641.30  2,289.30  

 

Notes:		Bonus	Issue

During the �inancial year 2024-25, the Company issued bonus shares in the ratio of 2:1 i.e., two equity 
share for every one equity share held) to the existing shareholders, by from the balance of security 
reserves.
Number of bonus share issued: 8,44,00,000 Face value per share: Rs. 1
Record Date: 09 August, 2024
The bonus issue was made in compliance with the provisions of Section 63 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and in accordance with the relevant provisions of Ind AS 33

Non-  Controlling Interest  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  
Non-  Controlling  Interest  (Net  off  Accumulated  profit/(Loss))  0.43  0.43  
Closing balance  0.43  0.43  

 

Note	No:	11																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	12																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	13																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Trade	payables	ageing	schedule	for	March	31,	2025

Trade	payables	ageing	schedule	for	March	31,	2024

Borrowings 
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Non-current  
Long  term  borrowings  
Term  loans  from  banks  -  Non  Current  
Vehicle Loan From Bank  

 

 
391.81  

-  

 

 
268.07  
11.10  

Total  391.81  279.17  
Current   

Short  Term  Borrowings    

Unsecured Loans  1,983.85  1,612.29  
Vehicle Loan  From  Bank  5.80  -  
Working Capital  Loan  From  SBI  1,916.53  1,921.17  
Total  3,906.18  3,533.47  

 

 
Par�culars 

Outstanding  For  Following  periods  from  Due  Date  of  Transac�on  

No  Due  
Less  than  6  

months  
6  Months  -  1  year  1-2  Years  2-3  Years  More  than  3  years  Total  

Total  outstanding  dues  of  micro  enterprises  
and  small  

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total  outstanding  dues  of  creditors  other  than  
micro 

-  531.35  -  -  -  -  531.35  

Disputed  dues  of  micro  enterprises  and  small  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disputed  dues  of  creditors  other  than  micro  
enterprises 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

 

Par�culars 

Outstanding  For  Following  periods  from  Due  Date  of  Transac�on  

No  Due  
Less  than  6  

months  
6  Months  -  1  year  1-2  Years  2-3  Years  More  than  3  years  Total  

Total  outstanding  dues  of  micro  enterprises  
and small 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total  outstanding  dues  of  creditors  other  than  
micro 

1,440.99  -  -  -  -  -  1,440.99  

Disputed  dues  of  micro  enterprises  and  small  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disputed  dues  of  creditors  other  than  micro  
enterprises 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  

 

Note	No:	14																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Other  financial  liabili�es  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  
Non-current  
Lease  liabili�es 
Neeladri Chit  Fund  Private  Limited  

108.58  5.97  
42.75  

Total  108.58  48.72  
Current   

Share Purchase  Considera�on  69.34  189.38  
Advance  from  customer  144.82   

Du�es  and  Taxes  payable   100.06  
Total  214.16  289.44  

 

 

Note	No:	15																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Trade  payables  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Total  outstanding  dues  of  micro  enterprises  and  small  enterprises  
Total  outstanding  dues  of  creditors  other  than  micro  enterprises  and  small  enterprises  531.35  

-  
1,440.99  

Total  531.35  1,440.99  

 

Note	No:	16																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Provisions 
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  
Provision for  Expenses  0.40  0.40  
Statutory  Dues  Payable  186.26  216.54  
Audit  Fee  Payable  1.26  0.64  
Provision for  Income  Tax  7.90  52.85  
Rent  Payable   -  
Provision for  Salary  8.11  -  
Expenses  Payable  -  -  
Total  203.93  270.42  

 

Note	No:	17																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Other  Liabili�es 
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  

Statutory  liability  7.09  10.75  
Other Current  liabili�es  15.48  11.36  
Advance  from  customers   68.00  
Current  Tax  Liabili�es   -  
Total  22.57  90.11  

 

Note	No:	18																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Con�ngent liabili�es  
As  at  

March  31,  2025  
As  at  

March  31,  2024  
Bank  Gurantee  21.06  -  
Total  21.06  -  

 

Note	No:	19																																																																																																																																																																																																																															(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Bank guarantees given by the company on behalf of Indian Institute of Management Shilong, which were 
taken over to carry out the business. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceeding to 
have a materially adverse effect on its �inancial position.

Notes	21
Financial	instruments,	�inancial	risk	and	capital	management	Category-wise	classi�ication	of	
�inancial	instruments:

Ra�os  to  be  disclosed  

Par�culars 
Items  included  in  numerator  and  

denominator  

Ra�o  as  at  
31st  March,  2025  

Ra�o  as  at  
31st  March,  2024  

Varia�ons  
Comments  if  Variance  is  more  than  

25%  

 
(a)  Current  Ra�o  

Current  Assets  (  including  Bank  Deposits  
having matuiry of more than 1 year)/  
Current  Liabili�es  

 
1.55  

 
1.59  

 
2.07%  

 
NA  

(b) Debt-Equity  Ra�o  Net  Debt/Total  Equity  1.48  1.41  -5.13%  NA  

(c)  Debt  Service  Coverage  Ra�o  
Earning  available  for  debt  services/Debt  
Services  

0.14  0.28  49.67%  Note  1  

(d)  Return  on  Equity  Ra�o  (refer  note  1  below)  
Net  Profit  a�er  Taxes/  
Average  Shareholder’s  Equity  

8.92  29.23  69.50%  Note  2  

(e)  Trade  Receivables  turnover  ra�o  
Revenue  from  opera�ons/  
Average  Trade  Receivables  

1.10  1.15  4.54%  
NA  

(f)
 
Trade

 
Payable

 
turnover

 
ra�o

 
Revenue  from  opera�ons/  
Average

 
Trade

 
Payables

 
2.59

 
2.71

 
4.54%

 
NA

 

(g)
 
Net

 
capital

 
turnover

 
ra�o

 
Revenue

 
from

 
Opera�ons/

 
Net

 
Working

 
capital

 
3.12

 
2.84

 
-10.09%

 
NA

 

(h)
 
Net

 
profit

 
ra�o

 

Profit
 

a�er
 

Tax/
 

Total
 

Income
 

3.03
 

8.84
 

65.74%
 

Note
 

3
 

 
 

 (i)
 
Return

 
on

 
Capital

 
employed

 

Earnings
 

before
 

Interest,
 

Tax
 

and
 

Foreign
 

Exchange Loss or (Gain) (net)/
 

Average
 

Capital
 

Employed
 

(Shareholders
 

Fund+Long Term Borrowing+ Current
 

Maturi�es of Borrowings+Short term
 borrowings)

 

 
 

 12.17
 

 
 

 26.59
 

 
 

 54.23%
 

 
 

 Note
 

4
 

 Notes
 

1.

 

Debt
 
Service

 
Coverage

 
ra�o

 
Decresed

 
Due

 
to

 
Consequent

 
Decrease

 
In

 
Profit

 
2.

 

Return
 
on

 
Equity

 
is

 
decreased

 
due

 
to

 
decrease

 
in

 
profit

 
3.

 

Net
 
Profit

 
Ra�o

 
is

 
decrease

 
due

 
to

 
iecrease

 
in

 
expenses

 
and

 
consequent

 
decrease

 
in

 
revenue.

 
4.

 

Retun
 
on

 
capital

 
employed

 
ra�o

 
is

 
decreased

 
due

 
to

 
decrease

 
in

 
profit

 

 

Par�culars

 
 Refer

 

note

 

As
 

at
 

March
 

31,
 

2025
 

(Rs.
 

In
 

Lakhs)
 

Fair Value through

 

other

 

Comprehensive

 

Income

 

Fair

 

Value

 

through

 
other

 

Profit

 

&

 

Loss

 

 Amor�sed

 

Cost

 
 Carrying value

Financial

 

asset

      

Investments

 

3

 

-

 

-

 

27.25

 

27.25

Trade

 

receivables

 

7

 

-

 

-

 

6,257.19

 

6,257.19

Cash and

 

cash

 

equivalents

 

8

 

-

 

-

 

334.11

 

334.11

Loans 4

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

Others

 

financial

 

assets

 

5

 

-

 

-

 

307.76

 

307.76

Bank balance

 

other

 

than

 

cash

 

and

 

cash

 

equivalents

 

9

 

-

 

-

 

118.68

 

118.68

Total

    

7,044.99

 

7,044.99

Financial

 

liabili�es

      

Borrowings

 

14

 

-

 

-

 

4,297.99

 

4,297.99

Trade

 

payables

 

16

 

-

 

-

 

531.35

 

531.35

Other

 

financial

 

liabili�es

 

15

 

-

 

-

 

214.16

 

214.16

Total

    

5,043.49

 

5,043.49

Par�culars

 
 

Refer

 

note

 

As

 

at

 

March

 

31,

 

2024

 

(Rs.

 

In

 

Lakhs)

 

Fair Value through

 

other

 

Comprehensive

 

Income

 

Fair

 

Value

 

through

 

other

 

Profit

 

&

 

Loss

 

 

Amor�sed

 

Cost

 
 

Carrying value

Financial

 

asset

      

Investments

 

3

 

-

 

-

 

2.75

 

2.75

Trade

 

receivables

 

7

 

-

 

-

 

6,400.33

 

6,400.33

Cash and

 

cash

 

equivalents

 

8

 

-

 

-

 

294.64

 

294.64

Loans 4 - - 564.90 564.90

Others financial assets 5 - - 326.21 326.21

Bank balance

 

other than cash and cash equivalents 9 - - 168.83 168.83

Total 7,757.66 7,757.66

Financial liabili�es

Borrowings 14 - - 3,812.63 3,812.63

Trade payables 16 - - 1,440.99 1,440.99

Other financial liabili�es 15 - - 338.17 338.17

Total 5,591.79 5,591.79

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments, unbilled revenues, loans, trade payables and other payables as at March 31,2025 and March 31,2024 approximate the fair value because of their
short-term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabili�es and borrowings subsequently measured at amor�sed cost is not significant in each of the
 years presented.

Note	No:	20																																																																																																																																																																																																																												(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Note:	22
RELATED	PARTY	TRANSACTIONS	DURING	FY	2024-25

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DURING FY 2024-25 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr No Name

 

 

PAN

 

 

 

Rela�onship

 

 

Type

 

of

 

related

 

party

 

transac�on

 
Value

 

of

 

transac�on

 

during

 

the

 

repor�ng

 

period

 

In case monies are

due to either party

as a result of the

transac�on

 

In case any financial indebtedness

is incurred to make or give loans,

inter-corporate deposits, advances

or

 

investments

 

Details of the loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or

investments

 
 

 

Opening

 

balance

 

 
 

 

Closing

 

balance

 

 

Nature

 

of

 

indebtedness

 

(loan/

 

issuance

 

of

 

debt/

 

any

 

other

 

etc.)

 

 
 

 

Cost

 

 
 

 

Tenure

 

 

Nature

 

(loan/advance/

 

intercorporate

 

deposit/

 

investment)

 

 

 

Interest

 

Rate

 

(%)

 

 
 

 

Tenure
Secured/

unsecured

Purpose for which

the funds will be

u�lised by the

ul�mate recipient

of funds

(endusage)

1 Sumathi Agro Industries ABPFS6905C

 

En�ty in which

 

common

 

director

 
Sale

 

of

 

Goods

 

or

 

Services

 
154.78

 

3.99

 

8.00

 

Not

 

Applicable

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- - -

2 Safraj Mulla BWIPM3845A

 
Compliance

 
officer

 
Salary

 
1.47

 
-

 
1.47

 
Not

 
Applicable

      

3 Laxminarayan Punna ATIPP6084C Chief Finance Officer Salary 4.44 4.44 8.85  Not  Applicable  -  -  -  -  - - -

4 N Sampath Rao - Director Execu�ve Director Salary 2.50 - 0.50        

5 Satyanarayana reddy AEQPG2585J
 

Rela�ves
 

of
 

KMP
 

Share
 

Purchase
 Considera�on

 

-
 

69.34
 

69.34
 

Not
 

Applicable
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

- - -

6 Sukumar reddy AEGPG0576B

 

Managing

 

Director

 

Share

 

Purchase

 Considera�on

 

120.05

 

120.05

 

-

 

Not

 

Applicable

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
 
- - -

  

Loan

 

64.31

 

-

 

-

       
7 Hetal Somani DRKPM6055H

 

Independent

 

Director

 

Si�ng

 

Fees

 

0.68

 

0.23

 

0.45

 

Not

 

Applicable

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- - -

8 Pra�k Shah BPWPS4894E Independent Director Si�ng Fees 0.68 0.23 0.45 Not Applicable - - - - - - -

9 Nidhi Jain ALJPJ6647E Independent Director Si�ng Fees 0.68 0.23 0.45 Not Applicable - - - - - - -

Revenue from opera�ons 
For  the  year  ended  

March  31,  2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March  31,  2024  

Revenue from sublease of land   
Grant Income 235.09  304.35  
Sale of Services 8,136.09  8,481.19  
Business Support Services 193.85  186.63  

Total
 

8,565.03
 

8,972.17
 

 

Note	No:	23																																																																																																																																																																																																																												(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Other Income 
For  the  year  ended  

March  31,  2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March  31,  2024  

Interest   
From Others 27.06  36.35  

Dividend Income 12.23  12.51  
Creditors balance Wri�en Back 48.73  -  
Provision wri�en back 885.34  -  
Interest

 
on
 

Fixed
 

Deposit
 

11.27
 

-
 

Miscellaneous
 

Income
 

16.62
 

0.19
 

Bad
 

Debt
 

Recovered
 

-
 

12.15
 

Total
 

1,001.25
 

61.19
 

 

Note	No:	24																																																																																																																																																																																																																												(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Employee  benefit  expense  
For  the  year  ended  

March  31,  2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March  31,  2024  

Salaries  to  Employees  231.79  156.03  
Director  Remunera�on  4.95  6.60  
Total  236.74  162.63  

 

Note	No:	25																																																																																																																																																																																																																												(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Finance  costs  
For  the  year  ended  

March  31,  2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March  31,  2024  

Interest  on  loan  7.04  33.93  
Bank  and  other  finance  charges  12.76  16.12  
Interest  on  Overdra�  214.28  217.68  
Lease  Finance  Cost  8.34  1.26  
Total  242.43  268.98  

 

Note	No:	26																																																																																																																																																																																																																												(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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Other

 

expenses

 

For

 

the

 

year

 

ended

 March

 

31,

 

2025

 

For

 

the

 

year

 

ended

 March

 

31,

 

2024

 Manpower

 

cost 

Administra�ve

 

Expenses 

Adver�sing

 

Expenses 

Training

 

Expenses

 Safety Expenses

 Boarding And lodging Expense 

Legal & Professional Charges 

BSE-

 

Annual Lis�ng Fees

 
NSDL

 

Fees 

CDSL

 

Charges

 
Sundry

 

Expenses 

GST Expense

 
ROC Filing Fees

 
Virtual Office Rent 

Interest on Income Tax 

Interest on GST

 

Bank

 

Charges

 

Auditor's

 

remunara�on 

Bad Debts Expense

 

Computer Maintenance Expense 

Consultancy Charges

 

Electricity expense 

General Expenses 

Project/Sites

 

Expenses 

Licence

 

Expenses 

Uniform Charges 

Website

 

Expenses

 

Interest on Late Payment of Statutory Dues 

Other

 

Expenses

 

Insurance

 

Expenses 

Internet

 

Expense

 

Opera�ons & Maintenance Exp 

Office

 

expense

 

Prin�ng & Sta�onery Expense 

Rent &

 

Accomoda�on expenses 

Telephone

 

expenses

 

Travelling

 

and

 

conveyance

 

expense

 

7,040.85

 25.16

 -

 0.54

 0.98

 -

 
11.13

 
5.12

 
0.74

 
1.67

 
0.28

 
2.44

 
7.65

 
0.77

 
2.97

 

0.03

 

10.58

 

3.76

 

637.33

 

0.36

 

5.07

 

1.41

 

355.25

 

37.01

 

1.25

 

4.73

 

2.75

 

41.14

 

4.57

 

4.13

 

0.44

 

17.10

 

259.52

 

23.60

 

9.81

 

0.25

 

52.32

 

6,880.27

 -

 1.03

 -

 -

 
0.85

 
28.37

 
3.37

 
0.45

 
0.32

 
4.32

 
5.23

 
0.15

 
0.48

 
2.54

 

59.42

 

0.19

 

6.70

 

-

 

0.58

 

-

 

1.30

 

235.39

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

5.08

 

-

 

-

 

0.55

 

0.43

 

16.55

 

380.88

 

0.69

 

-

 

0.26

 

73.04

 

Total

 

8,572.71

 

7,708.44

 

 

Note:

 

(a)

 

Payment

 

to

 

auditor

 

For

 

the

 

year

 

ended

 

March

 

31,

 

2025

 

For

 

the

 

year

 

ended

 

March

 

31,

 

2024

 

As

 

auditor:

 

As

 

Auditors 

Limited

 

review

 

 

3.11

 

0.65

 

 

0.12

 

1.05

 

Total

 

3.76

 

1.17

 

 

Note	No:	27																																																																																																																																																																																																																												(Rs.	In	Lakhs)
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During the year, the Company has issued bonus shares in the ratio of 2:1 on 09 August 2024, i.e., two 
bonus equity shares for every one equity share held. The bonus shares have been issued from securities 
premium and were allotted to all shareholders holding equity shares on the record date.
In accordance with paragraph 26 of Ind AS 33, the earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2024 
has been retrospectively adjusted to re�lect the bonus issue as if it had occurred at the beginning of the 
earliest period presented.
30. Gratuity Expense is recognised at the time of payments made to the Employees.
31. The Balances of GST Input Ledgers as per Books are subject to reconciliation with Balances as per 
GST Returns and consequential adjustmnets thereof.
Previous year �igures are regrouped wherever necessary.

For MAAK and Associates                                                 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No.: 135024W                                   CASPIAN CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                 SUKUMAR REDDY      SAMPATH RAO NEMMANI
CA Marmik Shah                                                                  GARLAPATHI
Partner                                                                                   Managing Director     Director
Membership No.                                                                  DIN:00966068            DIN: 07999868

Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Place: Hyderabad               Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26/05/2025                                                              Date: 26/05/2025             Date: 26/05/2025 
UDIN : 25133926BMJGXW2137

                                                                                                 Laxmi Narayan Punna                   Sarfraz Mulla
                                                                                                 Chief Financial Of�icer                   Company 
                                                                                                                                                              Secretary

                                                                                                 PAN: ATIPP6084C                           PAN:BWIPM3845A
                                                                                                 Place: Hyderabad                            Place: Hyderabad
                                                                                                 Date: 26/05/2025                          Date: 26/05/2025

Income tax 
For  the  year  ended  

March  31,  2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March  31,  2024  

Profit and loss sec�on 
Current income tax: 
Current income tax charge 
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous  years  
Deferred

 
tax:

 
Rela�ng

 
to
 

origina�on
 

and
 

reversal
 

of
 

temporary
 
differences

 

 
172.00  

-  

 
-27.79

 

 
-  

73.04  

 
-

 
Tax
 

expense
 

reported
 

in
 

the
 

Statement
 

of
 
profit

 
and

 
loss

 
144.21

 
73.04

 
Balance

 
sheet

 
sec�on

 
Current

 
Tax

 
liabili�es

 
75.65

 
20.20

 
Total

 
75.65

 
20.20

 

 

Earnings per share 
For  the  year  ended  

March  31,  2025  

For  the  year  ended  
March  31,  2024  

Profit/Loss a�ributable to equity shareholders  of  the  Company  
Weighted average number of equity shares 

259.30  
1,266  

792.75  
1,266  

Adjusted Basic and Diluted earning per share (in  Rs.)  0.20  0.63  

 

Note	No:	28																																																																																																																																																																																																																												(Rs.	In	Lakhs)

Note	No:	29																																																																																																																																																																																			(Rs.	In	Lakhs	except	No	of	Shares)
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